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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
S Results
BRELALR A Profit before taxation 56,652 106,418 226,585 164,487 176,834
FER (XH) /RE Income tax (expense)/credit 695 (2,740) (4,346) (560) (3,946)
AEERH Profit for the year 57,347 103,678 222,239 163,927 172,888
AEEHEF /(BB BER  Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to
ARRERBEEA Equity holders of the Company 59,849 104,825 222,239 163,927 172,888
PR R ER Minority interest (2,502) (1,147) — — =
REERF Profit for the year 57,347 103,678 222,239 163,927 172,888

17,289
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
BETFIT BETT BETT BETFIT BETT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEFE Net assets
MmE - BERREE Property, plant and equipment 8,838 7,299 7,570 6,659 5,547
BEME Investment properties 68,721 76,713 90,512 86,713 98,281
HELH R THFERME  Leasehold land and land use rights 18,628 18,335 18,041 17,748 17,345
HREEHES Jointly controlled entities 622,898 741,488 939,836 1,143,062 | 1,367,863
A=UNS| Associates 58,345 63,270 65,106 36,841 44,735
AHEESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 359,349 620,768 1,140,870 576,576 656,640
ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%@iﬁﬁﬁ Deferred income tax assets 550 526 525 673 658
MBEEFE Net current assets 297,879 243,518 520,214 441,057 481,082
RITER Bank borrowings (95,810) (47,929) (143,588) (53,946) (113,551)
EEMEHEE Deferred income tax liabilities (199) (29,316) (6,748) (7,201) (10,570)
BERE Net assets 1,339,199 1,694,672 2,632,338 2,248,182 | 2,548,030
ERAH Total equity
A Share capital 459,429 459,429 459,429 459,429 459,429
HinfEEs Other reserves 821,892 1,129,435 1,919,783 1,562,840 | 1,728,894
REBRF Retained profits
EOR RS Proposed dividend 13,783 18,377 27,566 13,783 13,783
Hit Others 29,732 87,431 224,531 212,130 345,924
REZEANEEZERE  Amount recognised directly in equity
BIEHEMIEREEE  relating to non-current asset classified
EBRME as held-for-sale — — 1,029 — =
AREERFEA Total equity attributable to equity
[EhER A holders of the Company 1,324,836 1,694,672 2,632,338 2,248,182 | 2,548,030
DR EE R Minority interest 14,363 — — — =
ERam Total equity 1,339,199 1,694,672 2,632,338 2,248,182 | 2,548,030
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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In 2009, the global economy generally showed signs of
stabilisation and recovery under the massive economic stimulus
packages launched by various major economies around the
world. The emerging market economies, Asian economies in
particular, enjoyed a rather apparent economic upturn.However,
the unemployment rates of the United States, the Euro Zone and
Japan remained at record high, which induced various
uncertainties to the full economic recovery.

OPERATING RESULTS

In 2009, the Group recorded an audited consolidated profit
attributable to equity holders of HK$172.89 million, an increase
of 5.5% over that of 2008. Basic earnings per share amounted to
37.63 HK cents.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Although the dividend income received from Huaneng Power
International, Inc.reduced by HK$16.3 million, with the increase
of HK$13.44 million in the share of profit after tax of Xiamen
International Bank and the reduction of HK$9.7 million in the
loss of the property development business, the Group reported
an increase in the consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders by HK$8.96 million as compared to that of 2008.

DIVIDEND

The directors have resolved to recommend at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 23rd
June 2010 the payment of a final dividend of 3 HK cents per
ordinary share totaling HK$13,782,860 for the year ended 31st
December 2009 (2008:final dividend of 3 HK cents per ordinary
share totaling HK$13,782,860). The proposed dividend, if
approved, will be paid on or before 21st July 2010.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Banking Business

The Group, through its 36.75% interest in the Xiamen
International Bank Group, conducts banking business in
Mainland China and Macao. During the year, the banking
business of the Group recorded a profit after tax of HK$178.1
million, an increase of 8.2% over that of 2008.

Facing with the extremely complicated situation both at home
and abroad, the Central Government adhered to proactive fiscal
policies and moderately eased monetary policies. Under the
support of the RMB4 trillion stimulus packages, the Mainland
economy took the lead to achieve overall economic recovery,
with its GDP for the year increased by 8.7% as compared to
previous year. Besides, the Macao economy also saw the
termination of its negative growth that lasted for four
consecutive quarters,and began to rebound during the second
half. However, the excess market liquidity and massive lending
pumped by the banks in Mainland China leading to rapid growth
of credit, and coupled with the policies to raise the capital
adequacy ratio and the allowances to non-performing loans
ratio announced by regulatory authorities, the business of small
to medium banks, in particular the growth of their credit
business, were affected to some extent. Further, the escalating
asset prices and stock market indices had also brought concerns
to the overheated economy.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Banking Business (Continued)

For the year under review, Xiamen International Bank’s audited
consolidated net profit prepared under China Accounting
Standards went up by 11.8% to RMB412.97 million from
RMB369.41 million in 2008.This is mainly due to the increase in
the unrealised fair value gain in the financial products held for
trading during the year.

As at the end of 2009, the total assets of Xiamen International
Bank Group grew by about 6.6% to RMB46.89 billion. Loans to
customers and customers’ deposits were RMB28.62 billion and
RMB41.93 billion respectively, an increase of 2.3% and 11.8%
respectively,as compared to those at the end of 2008. As interest
margin narrowed substantially as a result of the declining
interest rates, the net interest income fell by 17%, and the net
fee and commission income also dropped by 17.2% as compared
to those of 2008.

Looking ahead into 2010, the uncertainties of the global
economy will affect the development of China’s economy.
However, the urbanisation and the upgrade of consumption
structure of China will promote the economic development,
which in turn, will create a favorable environment for the
dynamic growth of the economy of Mainland China. In the
coming years, the Xiamen International Bank Group will focus
on deposit taking to promote its business, actively improve its
loan-deposit structure, enhance the creativity of its intermediary
business and fund management, strengthen its risk
management to turn challenges into opportunities,and capture
new opportunities and challenges arising from the banking
reform with a view to creating a new future.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Insurance Business

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited (“MXIC"), the Group’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, registered a net profit after tax of
HK$3.29 million for the year ended 31st December 2009, an
increase of 92.4% from HK$1.71 million in 2008. Such improved
results were due to the rebound of the investment market plus
the efforts of the management in fine-tuning its underwriting
and claims control strategies. MXIC, learning from these
experiences, will continue to seek for business growth
opportunities in a profitable manner.

Property Development and Investment

The property development and investment business of the
Group comprises the real estate development business and the
leasing of certain investment properties in Mainland China.In
2009, the property development and investment business
reported a loss after taxation of HK$2.43 million, which was
HK$12.88 million less than that of 2008.

Minxin (Suzhou) Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Minxin
Suzhou”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, undertakes
the real estate development business in Suzhou, Mainland China
(the “Suzhou Project”).In 2009, Minxin Suzhou recorded a loss
of RMB4.27 million (including the amortisation of land use right
of RMBO0.35 million), as compared to a loss of RMB8.51 million
(including the amortisation of land use right of RMB4.24 million)
in 2008. During the year, Minxin Suzhou pledged its land use
right of a parcel of land to a bank in Suzhou, Mainland China for
drawing down a construction loan of RMB150 million to finance
the construction costs of its property development project.The
interest expense of the loan amounted to RMB4.35 million has
been capitalised in properties under development for sale.

Upon the setting up of Minxin Suzhou, the Group borrowed
HK$180 million from a bank in Hong Kong for financing the
Suzhou Project, of which HK$54 million remained outstanding
as at the end of the year. Owing to the reduction in both the
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the principal of the loans,
the interest expenses for the year declined by HK$4.97 million
to HK$2.43 million as compared to that in 2008.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property Development and Investment (Continued)

During the year under review, because of the proactive fiscal
policy and moderately eased monetary policy together with a
series of preferential policies for the real estate industry
launched by the Central Government, the real estate market saw
a swift rebound with a sustained surge in land prices during the
first half. As a result, the Central Government tightened land
transactions and announced measures to cool down over-
soaring prices for residential flats during the second half,
resulting in more uncertainties for the real estate market.
Currently, the framework construction of the Suzhou Project has
basically been completed.
implementation stage for sales promotion.The Group will closely

It has entered into the

monitor the ever changing macroeconomic policies and the
local real estate market in Suzhou so as to complete the sales
with a view to attaining a maximised profit. The Suzhou Project,
which has a total construction area of about 81,000 square
metres, will build 55 blocks with a total of 218 low density
residential units.

As one of the participants in the real estate development market
in Mainland China, the Group pursues another critical strategy
to maintain a sustainable development of projects. The Group
believes that the urbanisation of China will be the greatest
impetus to the growth of its real estate industry in the coming
future. Hence, the Group will persist in adopting its prudent
strategy for land acquisition, and will take part in suitable land
auctions in second-tier cities to explore promising new projects.

Apart from generating a steady rental income to the Group, the
Group’s investment properties and car parks in Fuzhou, Fujian
Province (the “Fuzhou Property”) represent growing capital
value in the long term and can also act as quality securities for
acquiring longer term finance. Benefiting from the substantial
increase in rental following the renewal of lease in the second
half of 2008, the Fuzhou Property recorded an increase of 16.7%
in rental income to RMB3.06 million in 2009, as compared to
RMB2.62 million in 2008. As at 31st December 2009, the Fuzhou
Property reported a rise of 15.7% in its fair value to RMB39.43
million as compared to RMB34.09 million as at 31st December
2008.During the year, the Group recognised a fair value gain of
HK$6.24 million, as compared to HK$0.7 million in 2008.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Investment in Huaneng Power International Inc. (“Huaneng
Shares”)

Under the RMBA4 trillion stimulus policy launched by the Central
Government, the stock market indices surged sharply. As at the
end of December 2009, the Shanghai Composite Index surged
by more than 1,000 points as compared to that at the end of
2008.The closing bid price of Huaneng's A-share also rose to
RMBS8 per share as at 31st December 2009 over RMB6.92 per
share as at 31st December 2008. The fair value of the Group’s
investment in 72 million Huaneng Shares measured with
reference to the closing bid price of Huaneng's A-share increased
by approximately RMB77.76 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$90.84 million) to approximately RMB576
million (equivalent to approximately HK$656.64 million) as
compared to that at the end of 2008. With Huaneng Shares
classified as a long term available-for-sale financial asset of the
Group, the gain of approximately HK$90.84 million arising from
the change in its fair value (2008:fair value loss of approximately
HK$575.07 million) was recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve.

Being classified as a long term available-for-sale financial asset
of the Group, Huaneng Shares not only generate a steady
dividend income to the Group, but also represent growing
capital value for the Group in the long term.The Group will fully
exploit this quality asset in its future development.

During the year, as Huaneng reduced its final dividend payment
for 2008 to RMBO.1 per share in light of the loss reported for the
year of 2008, the Group recorded a dividend income of HK$8.17
million, as compared to the final dividend payment for 2007 of
RMBO0.3 per share totaling HK$24.48 million received by the
Group for the year of 2008.

On 24th March 2010, Huaneng announced its results under the
China Accounting Standards for the year of 2009.As a result of a
10.5% growth in its operating revenue when compared to that
of 2008, coupled with lower fuel costs, Huaneng was able to
achieve a turnaround, and reported an earnings per share of
RMBO0.42 as compared to a loss per share of RMBO.3 for 2008.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
High-Tech Investments

Min Faith Investments Limited (“Min Faith”), an investment of
the Group engaging in the manufacturing of industrial digital
instrumentations and smart electric meters through its
subsidiaries in Mainland China, has posted another record profit
after tax of HK$19.43 million in the year of 2009, a 30.8% increase
as compared to that in 2008.1n 2010, Min Faith will strive to attain
breakthroughs in strategic and business development with a
view to achieving a greater step forward in the expansion of
the scale and profitability of Min Faith.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Net Asset Value per Share

As a result of the massive economic stimulus policy, the
economies enjoyed a more noticeable economic upturn with
ample liquidity for the year under review.The Group persists in
investing prudently as usual and strives to maintain a healthy
financial position. Based on 459,428,656 shares in issue (2008:
459,428,656 shares), the net asset value per share was HK$5.55
(2008: HK$4.89) at 31st December 2009.

Total Liabilities to Equity Ratio and Current Ratio

As at 31st December 2009, the total liabilities of the Group were
HK$486.41 million (2008: HK$261.34 million) and the ratio of
total liabilities to total equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company was 0.19 (2008:0.12). As at 31st December 2009,
the current assets and current liabilities of the Group were
HK$843.37 million (2008: HK$641.25 million) and HK$362.29
million (2008: HK$200.19 million) respectively with a current
ratio of 2.3 (2008:3.2).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Borrowings and Charged Assets

During the year, the Group has partially repaid the principal of
HK$90 million of the three-year floating rate term loans for
financing the Suzhou Project drew down in 2007 and the
outstanding balance of these bank loans was HK$54 million as
at 31st December 2009.

During the year, Minxin Suzhou drew down a two-year floating
rate term loan of RMB150 million from a bank in Suzhou,
Mainland China for financing the construction costs of its
property development project.The loan was bearing interest at
a spread over Renminbi lending rate announced by the People’s
Bank of China.

As at 31st December 2009, the total bank borrowings of the
Group amounted to HK$225 million, of which HK$111 million
will be repayable in 2010 and the balance of HK$114 million will
be repayable in 2011.

As at 31st December 2009, the above bank loans were secured
by the Company’s bank deposit of approximately HK$8.73
million, the Group's certain properties (including the leasehold
land component) with a book value of approximately HK$63.35
million, land use rights of a parcel of land in Suzhou held by
Minxin Suzhou with a book value of approximately RMB284.98
million (equivalent to approximately HK$324.88 million) and
share mortgages of the Company’s subsidiaries, namely Min Xin
Properties Limited and Minxin Suzhou.

Save for the above, the other assets of the Group have not been
pledged as at 31st December 2009.

Subsequent to the reporting date, the Group has obtained
secured loan facilities of HK$60 million from a bank in Hong
Kong and drew down HK$50 million to repay the loans of HK$54
million matured after the reporting date. These facilities were
secured by the self-use office building owned by a wholly-
owned subsidiary in Hong Kong with a net book value of
HK$12.59 million (fair value of HK$100 million).The security of
the new facilities was previously one of the collateral of the loans
repaid, and the application for the release of other collaterals
has been processed.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Gearing Ratio

As at 31st December 2009, the gearing ratio of the Group (total
borrowings and advances divided by total net assets) still
maintained at a relatively low level and was only 8.8% (2008:
6.4%).

Cash Position

The Group’s bank deposits are interest bearing at prevailing
market rates. As at 31st December 2009, the total bank deposits
of the Group amounted to HK$365.33 million (2008: HK$261.3
million) of which 28.7% were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, 69.8% in Renminbi and 1.5% in other currencies (2008:
81.4% in Hong Kong Dollars, 16.5% in Renminbi and 2.1% in
other currencies).

Pursuant to the requirements from the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong, a subsidiary maintains
at all times a portion of its funds, being not less than HK$16
million, in bank deposits. That subsidiary has also maintained a
bank deposit of approximately MOP4.21 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$4.09 million) for fulfilling certain
requirements under the Macao Insurance Ordinance.

Risk of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group’s assets, liabilities and receipts and payments are
primarily denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi. As
the exchange rate of Renminbi against Hong Kong Dollars has
slightly increased as compared to that at the end of 2008, the
Group’s net monetary assets denominated in Renminbi has
resulted in translation gain of approximately HK$0.03 million
recorded by the Group in 2009 (2008: approximately HK$2.39
million). Save for the above, the Group anticipates that it will
not face material risks arising from foreign exchange rates
fluctuation.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Commitments

As at 31st December 2009, the commitments of the Group for
its real estate development business amounted to RMB89.91
million, equivalent to approximately HK$102.5 million (2008:
RMB158.22 million, equivalent to approximately HK$179.67
million), and the capital commitments relating to property, plant
and equipment amounted to approximately HK$0.2 million
(2008: approximately HK$0.2 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December 2009 and 2008, the Group did not have
any material contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31st December 2009, the Group had 73 employees. The
remuneration of the employees is based on individual merits
and experience.The Group also provides other benefits to the
employees including retirement benefits and medical scheme.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward into 2010, the Board foresees that the Group
will face a complicated operating environment. Although the
macroeconomic trend is favorable at large, the imbalance of
economic structure is still apparent. It is believed that the Central
Government will launch more flexible and specific moderately
eased monetary policy to prevent inflation, increase domestic
demand, and expedite the transformation of the economic
development and adjustment of the economic structure so that
the national economy can sustain a steady growth.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

As for the internal environment, the proposed reform of Xiamen
International Bank as mentioned in the Company’s
announcement dated 1st April 2010 posts challenges as well as
opportunities to the Group.With the reduction of the Company’s
shareholding to not exceeding 20%, the results of Xiamen
International Bank will cease to be accounted for under the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, thus having a material adverse impact on the
consolidated results of the Group. Nevertheless, the Group
anticipates that the equity value may increase in view of the
proposed reform. As a result, a gain will arise when the
shareholding is reduced.

The Group will in the future focus on enhancing its analysis and
judgment towards the macroeconomic control policy under the
prevailing situation, actively seek attractive investment
opportunities, and appropriately exert more efforts in the real
estate development in Mainland China. It will also enhance its
ability to capture market opportunities and improve its
integrated operation in order to strive to provide reasonable
returns for the shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my
appreciation and gratitude to our friends for their support, and
to the management and all our staff for their dedicated services
and contribution.

WENG RUO TONG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd April 2010
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Weng Ruo Tong, aged 55, has been appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company since April 2009, and served
as Vice Chairman of the Company since then until 30th June
2009. He has been subsequently re-designated as Chairman of
the Company since 1st July 2009. Mr Weng is an university
graduate and has engaged in industrial investment,
infrastructure construction and development, capital and
corporate management for a substantial period of time.He has
extensive experience in investments, financing, infrastructure
construction and development, and corporate management.He
had previously assumed the positions of Vice Director of the
Forestry Department of Fujian Province, General Manager of
Fujian Forestry Company, General Manager of Fujian Investment
and Development Corporation. He is currently the Chairman of
Fujian Investment and Development Holdings Corporation, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr Wang Hui Jin,aged 47, acted as a Non-executive Director of
the Company from October 2005 to 22nd April 2009. He was re-
designated as an Executive Director of the Company on
23rd April 2009, and has been appointed as Vice Chairman of
the Company since 1st July 2009. Mr Wang is an university
graduate and holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics. He is a
Senior Accountant in Mainland China.He has spent a substantial
period of time in corporate management and has extensive
experience in corporate, financial and capital management. He
had previously assumed the positions of Deputy and Section
Head of the Finance Department of Fuzhou Medical Centre in
Fujian Province, General Manager of Fuzhou Medical Centre in
Fujian Province, Vice Chairman and General Manager of Fuzhou
Tong Chun Pharmaceutical Group Corporation, Chairman of
Fuzhou Chang Chun Pharmaceutical Company and Chief
Accountant of Fujian Investment Development Company. He
had also served as Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of
CNOOC Fujian Gas Ltd and CNOOC Fujian Gas Power Ltd. He
acted as Vice President and the Chief Accountant of Fujian
Investment & Enterprise Holdings Corporation from September
2005 to April 2009.He is currently the General Manager of Fujian
Investment and Development Holdings Corporation, and a
Director and the Chairman of Vigour Fine Company Limited, both
of which are substantial shareholders of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr Ding Shi Da, aged 61, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since April 2002 and also served as
Chairman of the Company for the period from April 2002 to
30th June 2009.Mr Ding is a Senior Economist in Mainland China
and holds a Doctorate Degree in Management from the
Postgraduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social Science.
He has spent about 35 years in various large companies such as
Fujian Building Materials Industry Company and Fujian Building
Materials Holding Co., Ltd., as well as the economic
administration department of the government in Shang Hang
County and Long Yan Region. He has extensive experience in
capital and financial management and has previously assumed
the positions of Chief Leader and Section Head of the Economic
Committee in Long Yan Region, General Manager of Fujian
Building Materials Industry Company and Fujian Building
Materials Holding Co., Ltd., and Chairman of Fujian Cement Inc.,
a listed company in Shanghai. He is currently the Chairman of
Xiamen International Bank.

Mr Zhu Xue Lun, aged 58, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since April 2003. Mr Zhu is an university
graduate and an Engineer in Mainland China. He has spent a
long time in corporate management and has extensive
experience in corporate management, property management,
investment and capital management. He has previously
assumed the positions of Director of Taining Light Industry
Bureau in Fujian Province, Head of Taining County, General
Manager of Huafu Real Estate Company in Fujian Province.He is
currently a Vice President of Fujian Investment and Development
Holdings Corporation and a Director of Vigour Fine Company
Limited, both of which are substantial shareholders of the
Company.

Mr Weng Jian Yu, aged 53, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since November 2004. Mr Weng joined
the Company as Deputy General Manager in June 2004 and has
served as the General Manager of the Company since October
2004.He is an Economist in Mainland China.He has over 20 years’
management experience in financial companies which include
banks, trust companies and fund management companies etc.
He is currently the Chairman of Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited. He is also a Director of both Vigour Fine Company
Limited and Samba Limited, both of which are substantial
shareholders of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr Li Jin Hua, aged 47, acted as a Non-executive Director of the
Company from April to 12th August 2009, and has been re-
designated as an Executive Director of the Company following
his appointment as Deputy General Manager of the Company
since 13th August 2009. Mr Li is an university graduate and holds
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration. He is a Senior
Economist and Senior Engineer in Mainland China, and has
engaged in industrial investment, project development and
corporate management for a substantial period of time. He has
extensive experience in corporate management and investment,
development and construction. He has previously assumed the
positions of Deputy General Manager of Fujian Raw Materials
United Development Company, General Manager of Zhong Min
Leasing Company, General Manager of Fujian Hongfa Economic
Development Company, Deputy General Manager of CNOOC
Fujian Gas Power Co., Ltd., and Deputy General Manager of the
Planning and Development Department and General Manager
of the Gas Department of Fujian Investment & Development
Corporation. He is currently a Director of Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited. He is also a Director of both Vigour Fine
Company Limited and Samba Limited, both of which are
substantial shareholders of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Ip Kai Ming, aged 58, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 1998. He is
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. He is currently an
Executive Director and General Manager of Luso International
Banking Limited in Macao. He is a fellow member of both the
Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors,and has over 30 years’ extensive experience in banking
and finance.He is also a member of Beijing Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a
Director of the Macao Chamber of Commerce, the Vice Chairman
of the Executive Board of the Macao Institute of Financial
Services and a Vice Chairman of the Macao Chinese Enterprises
Association.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr Sze Robert Tsai To, aged 69, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since May
1999.He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
was a partner of an international firm of accountants with which
he practised for over 20 years. He is currently a non-executive
director to a number of Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr So Hop Shing, aged 62, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
September 2004. He is a member of both the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a practising
solicitor and senior partner of Tang and So, Solicitors and
Notaries. Mr So is the holder of Bachelor of Laws Degree from
the University of London, Master of Laws Degree from the City
University of Hong Kong and The People’s University of China,
and Doctor of Laws Degree from Peking University.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Cai Xiao Hong, aged 55, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in June 1995. She holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from the University of California, Los
Angeles and has previously worked for various large companies.
She has over 20 years' extensive experience in financial and
investment management. She is currently a Director of Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited.

Mr Lin Zhu Fu, aged 46, joined the Company as Deputy General
Manager in September 2006. Mr Lin graduated from the Fujian
College of Engineering in Architecture and Beijing Jiaotong
University in Law. He is an Engineer and Senior Corporate
Controller in Mainland China and has over 26 years’ experience
in real estate development, construction, investment
management and corporate management. He is currently a
Director and General Manager of both Minxin (Suzhou) Property
Development Co., Ltd.and Fujian Minxin Investment Consultants
Co., Ltd..
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr Chan Kwong Yu, aged 39, joined the Company in April 2000.
He was appointed as the Deputy Financial Controller of the
Company in July 2004 and was promoted to Financial Controller
in January 2008. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree in
Accounting, and is a Certified Public Accountant and a Fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Before
joining the Company, he has worked for various listed companies
in Hong Kong. He has 12 years of extensive experience in
accounting and financial management. He is currently the Chief
Representative of the Fuzhou Representative Office of the
Company and a Director and Financial Controller of Minxin
(Suzhou) Property Development Co., Ltd..

Ms Huang Yu Chai, aged 46, joined the Company as Group Chief
Auditor in January 2008. Ms Huang, an university graduate, is a
Certified Internal Auditor,and a Senior Accountant in Mainland
China. She has been committed to the fields of financial and
auditing for a long period of time, and has extensive experience
in financial management and audit for more than 25 years.

Mr Chan Kwok Kwong, aged 51, joined Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited (“MXIC"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, in 1999 and has subsequently been appointed as
Chief Executive and Director of MXIC since October 1999 and
September 2003 respectively. He holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and a Master’s Degree in Engineering (Civil & Structural
Engineering) from the Sheffield University of England. He has
acquired extensive experience from various multi-national
insurance and reinsurance companies for 23 years.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

For the financial year ended 31st December 2009, the Company
has applied the principles and complied with all the
requirements set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except for the deviation
from code provision A.4.1 in respect of the service terms of non-
executive directors, details of which are set out in this report.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company currently
comprises a total of nine Directors, with six Executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The three
Independent Non-executive Directors collectively possess a
wide range of expertise on accounting, financial management
and legal areas. The Directors’ biographical information is set
out on pages 16 to 19.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules to the Company. Accordingly, the Company is
of the view that all the Independent Non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules
and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

The Board determines the Group’s overall objectives and
strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance. It also decides on matters such as annual budgets
and business plans, major transactions, director appointments
or re-appointments, and dividend and accounting policies.The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to senior management
under the supervision of the General Manager and the Executive
Committee of the Board.
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Board meetings are normally scheduled in advance to facilitate
fullest possible attendance. Each Director is invited to present
any businesses that he wishes to discuss or propose at such
meetings. All Directors have access to appropriate business
documents and information about the Company on a timely
basis. The Board and each Director have separate and
independent access to senior management of the Company.
Directors may choose to take independent professional advice
at the Company'’s expenses, if necessary. Drafts and final versions
of minutes are circulated to all the Directors for comments.The
Company held four full Board meetings in 2009 and the average
attendance rate was 95%. Individual attendance of each Director
at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings and the
Remuneration Committee meeting during 2009 is set out below:

HER/ESERY

Attendance / Number of Meetings
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Exg BEREEE FMZEE®
Audit Remuneration
Board Comnmittee Committee
HITES Executive Directors
ﬁ%ﬂ?ﬁi (£/) Mr Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman) 3/3 — —
(R=ZZFZENFIA (Appointed on 23rd April 2009)
—+=ZHZMA)
Telrs (FIEE) Mr Wang Hui Jin (Vice Chairman) 3/4 — —
THEEE Mr Ding Shi Da 3/4 — —
@MT\?&% Mr Chen Gui Zong 1/1 — —
(R=ZFZNFMUA (Resigned on 23rd April 2009)
—+ZHET)
REREE Mr Zhu Xue Lun 4/4 — —
PREFEE (BLHE) Mr Weng Jian Yu (General Manager) 4/4 — 1/1
FRERL Mr Li Jin Hua 3/3 — —
(R=ZFEZENFITA (Appointed on 23rd April 2009)
—+=HZ)
BYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
LEBEE Mr Sze Robert Tsai To 4/4 2/2 171
(BRZE8FE) (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
ERMBEE Mr Ip Kai Ming 4/4 1/2 11
(FNZE2F/E) (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
BRAKEE Mr So Hop Shing 4/4 2/2 1/1
EHITES Non-executive Director
PR 48 5 A Mr Chen Le 171 — —
(R=ZFZENFMUA (Resigned on 23rd April 2009)
—+=HEHT)
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and
the existing General Manager (acting in the capacity of Chief
Executive Officer) of the Company are held by separate
individuals with a view to maintain an effective segregation of
duties regarding management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.One of the important roles
of the Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board to ensure
that the Board acts in the best interests of the Group. The
Chairman ensures that the Board works effectively and
discharges its responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The
Chairman has delegated the responsibility for drawing up the
agenda for each Board meeting to the General Manager and
the Company Secretary. Senior management is responsible for
the day-to-day operations of the Group under the leadership of
the General Manager of the Company. The General Manager,
working with the Executive Committee and supported by other
management, is responsible for managing the businesses of the
Group, including implementation of strategies adopted by the
Board and assuming full accountability to the Board for the
operations of the Group.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of Executive Directors in 2009.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Since the full Board is involved in the appointment of new
Directors, the Company has not established a Nomination
Committee.The Board will take into consideration criteria such
as expertise, experience, integrity and commitment when
considering new director appointments.

The Non-executive Directors of the Company have not been
appointed for a specific term as required by Code Provision A.4.1;
but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Articles of Association of the Company requires every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term or
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to the Executive
Committee which currently consists of four Executive Directors
of the Board, namely Mr Weng Ruo Tong, Mr Wang Hui Jin,
Mr Ding Shi Da and Mr Zhu Xue Lun.These members meet
frequently as and when necessary.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the three Independent Non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr Sze Robert Tsai To who
was a partner of an international firm of accountants with which
he practiced for over 20 years. It is responsible for the
appointment of external auditors, reviewing the Group'’s
financial information and providing oversight of the Group’s
financial reporting and internal control system. It is also
responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the
Group prior to recommending them to the Board for approval.
It meets regularly to review financial reporting and internal
control matters and to perform such duties it has unrestricted
access to both the Company’s external and internal auditors.

In 2009, the Audit Committee held two meetings with the
attendance rate of 83%. At the meetings, it reviewed the final
results for the year ended 31st December 2008 and the interim
accounts for the six months ended 30th June 2009 respectively
with the external auditors; and also the activities of the Group’s
internal audit function and its findings and recommendations
as laid down in the internal audit reports.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Company'’s
remuneration policy, and the formulation and review of the
specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and
senior management of the Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors.This Committee is chaired
by Mr Ip Kai Ming who is an Independent Non-executive Director.
The other members are Mr Sze Robert Tsai To, Mr So Hop Shing,
Mr Weng Jian Yu and Mr Chan Kwong Yu.

During 2009, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the fees
of the Directors,and payment of bonus to the management staff.
It also reviewed the Company’s proposed salary adjustments to
its employees. One meeting was held in 2009 with the
attendance rate of 100%.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that the Group
maintains sound and effective controls to safeguard the Group’s
assets.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss; to manage rather than completely eliminate the risk of
system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group’s
objectives.

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal control of the Group and reports directly to the Audit
Committee and the Board. It has unrestricted access to review
all aspects of the Group's activities and internal controls. It also
conducts special audits of areas of concern identified by the
Audit Committee or management.The Audit committee has free
and direct access to the Head of the Internal Audit Department
without reference to the Chairman or Management.

In 2009, the Board, through the Audit Committee and Internal
Audit Department, conducted an annual review of the Group’s
internal control system.The annual review was coordinated by
the Group’s Internal Audit Department, which, after senior
management and each business and operational unit had
performed their self-assessment, have carried out independent
examination and other post-assessment work on the review
process and results. The results of the 2009 review had been
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring such
accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company'’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; and
that judgments and estimates made are prudent and
reasonable.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st December 2009, the fees paid or payable
to the external Auditors for statutory audit services, attestation
work (in relation to interim financial statements issued by the
Company),and tax and consultancy services were HK$2,228,000,
HK$336,000 and HK$150,000 respectively.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct governing
securities transactions by directors on terms no less exacting
than that required by the Listing Rules. Following a specific
enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they complied with the
code of conduct for transactions in the Company’s securities
throughout the year.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct governing
securities transactions by employees who may possess or have
access to price sensitive information.
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The directors hereby present their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are
set out in Note 18 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year are set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2009
are set out on page 35.

The directors have resolved at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on 23rd June 2010 the
payment of a final dividend 3 HK cents per ordinary share
totaling HK$ 13,782,860 for the year ended 31st December 2009.
(2008: final dividend of 3 HK cents per ordinary share totaling
HK$13,782,860).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, net assets and total equity of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Note 33 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are
set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD

Details of the Group’s principal property interests held for
investment purpose are set out on page 188.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note
33 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31st December 2009,
calculated under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance,amounted to HK$78,746,000 (2008: HK$88,319,000).

DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors serving during the year and at the
date of this report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with articles 94 and 95 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Messrs Wang Hui Jin, So Hop Shing and Weng
Jian Yu will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Company considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent as defined in the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

At 31st December 2009, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the

™ Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (“Model Code”) were as follows:
RAEQXREBROZHR
Long Position in Ordinary Shares of the Company
BHBERBE DL
ERME BEROAEE Approximate
EEHE Nature of Number of percentage of
Name of Director interests shares held shareholding
E R (EPN: Fa
Ip Kai Ming Personal interest 666,000 0.14%
BREXFIREEN  RZZETNF+T A= Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2009, none of the

T— B ARAEZRITREZMEEARR
Al AR AAEROERE (R 5 LS 5 PIZEXV
ERFTHEEE ) MR D  ARRARR I HESF
BEMBEREES R RDIEIS21FETH
Trr) & ROt Prc SR SR IBIR T RIZA A S A
NEI LRz BmIORR  MARRIZE
EHRFZBBIN8EIA T 2 FRRF AR
BERATMENARBARRNESKREIT
ERaFHER -

Directors and Chief Executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code; and none of the Directors or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during
the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO recorded that, as at 31st December 2009, the
following corporations had interests (as defined in the SFO) in

ErRBERAZER) - HAMANT - the Company:
BAFKRES L
FEEROEE Approximate
NCIEE Bt 2t Number of percentage of
Name of Corporation Notes shares held shareholding
Samba Limited (“Samba”) 144,885,000 31.54%
Papilio Inc. 1 169,125,000 36.81%
EEARRAA([ERE]D
Vigour Fine Company Limited (“Vigour Fine”) 2 191,340,600 41.64%
RRAREFEEEAREEQAR([BEKRERE])
Fujian Investment and Development Holdings
Corporation (“FIDHC") 3 191,340,600 41.64%

et

Papilio Inc.# B Sambali R K€K =5 2 —8k
LA 224 - #5148 B % B Sambai A2 ] B
5 144,885,000/% % 15 H#E 2 o

2. EBEfzEASambalRE AR =92z 2.
G EWE - WA A% Sambal AN A R FT
144,885,0000% & 19 Ay #E 25 o

3. RENEHZEAEENZEERE  WEARE 3.

BEERAR B EZEE MR 0%

nﬁ"

A REERAARERRZER - R
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AR B 8% ©

Notes:

Papilio Inc. held one third or more of the voting power at general
meetings of Samba and was deemed to be interested in
144,885,000 shares of the Company owned by Samba.

Vigour Fine held one third or more of the voting power at general
meetings of Samba and was deemed to be interested in
144,885,000 shares of the Company owned by Samba.

FIDHC was the controlling shareholder of Vigour Fine and was
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company owned
by Vigour Fine directly or indirectly.

All the interests stated above represent long positions in the
ordinary shares of the Company. As at 31st December 2009, no
short positions were recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company renewed the annual management
agreement with Vigour Fine, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, whereby Vigour Fine provides management services
to the Company which include the provision of directors to the
board of directors of the Company. A management fee of
HK$1,880,000 has been paid to Vigour Fine during the year.

Messrs Wang Hui Jin, Zhu Xue Lun, Weng Jian Yu and Li Jin Hua
have interest in the above transaction as directors of Vigour Fine.

Except for the above, no other contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details in respect of the Company’s Directors
and senior management are set out on pages 16 to 20.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its
products and services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less
than 30% of its products and services to its 5 largest customers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31st December 2009, which are not
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules as connected
transactions, are disclosed in Notes 19, 20, 30, 37(a), 37(b) and
37(d) to the financial statements.

Other related party transactions, which also constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in
Note 37(c) to the financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as of the
date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period are disclosed in
Note 38 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

WENG RUO TONG
Chairman

HONG KONG, 22nd April 2010
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Min
Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to 187, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statement of financial
position as at 31st December 2009, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31st December 2009 and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22nd April 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

2 22009F 12 A31 H IE FE For the year ended 31st December 2009
2009 2008
T EB¥ T T BT T
Note HK$’000 HKS’000
R Turnover 5 90,825 92,785
PNk Total revenues 5 80,408 85,168
Hiblam — F88 Other gains — net 6 12,049 5,242
—EAL PN Total operating income 92,457 90,410
R EBELMEEFESE  Netinsurance claims incurred and
KA EA commission expenses incurred on
insurance business 7 (55,770) (39,519)
BITHA Staff costs (29,559) (29,660)
e K Depreciation and amortisation (1,878) (6,356)
AtHESMEERE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
&5 18 financial assets 21(b)&(c) (28) (325)
Hih & Other operating expenses (17,441) (19,361)
CERT AT Total operating expenses (104,676) (95,221)
EEEE Operating loss 8 (12,219) (4,811)
ELEZID N Finance costs 9 (2,477) (7,460)
B HERZEHEEESR Share of results of jointly controlled
entities 19(a) 185,873 170,605
il NI Share of results of associates 20 5,657 6,153
BR B A& A Profit before taxation 176,834 164,487
& fi = Income tax expense 11 (3,946) (560)
REEBR Profit for the year 12 172,888 163,927
BE Dividend
— RHIRE — Final dividend 13 13,783 13,783
AL SEA
HK CENTS HK CENTS
BREF Earnings per share
—ERRE#E — Basic and diluted 14 37.63 35.68
BERRE Dividend per share
— RERE — Final dividend 3 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2 Z22009F 12 A31 H IE FE For the year ended 31st December 2009
2009 2008
iR BET T BETT
Note HK$’000 HKS’000
AEEBR Profit for the year 172,888 163,927
H fth 2 [E Uk &= Other comprehensive income
AHEESREE Available-for-sale financial assets
friEs BREC AR (F0BR) Fair value changes credited/(charged)
MR FEZS to equity 90,838 (575,068)
JE {h H R 15 I E 88 89 Share of changes in equity of jointly
W B E controlled entities
=R Fair value changes credited to
N EEZS equity 55,445 11,197
ank== Disposal 601 (623)
IR EFH IE Deferred tax (11,187) (2,604)
135,697 (567,098)
HEBEEH#HES Leasehold buildings revaluation reserve
HEEFERIREME Unrealised surplus on revaluation of
EERRERER leasehold buildings transferred to
paeh S investment property 51 —
MEBINHE AT - B Exchange differences arising on translation
&N 7] Je 2[R 2 of the financial statements of foreign
ERNMIE|MER subsidiaries, associates and jointly
EXNERLESR controlled entities 4,749 46,933
BRINBRBEENEEE Other comprehensive income for the year,
Hitb 2 mH W= net of tax 140,497 (520,165)
AEEETHKSEE Total comprehensive income for the year 313,385 (356,238)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2009412 31 H# 5 As at 31st December 2009
2009 2008
T rE BT BT T
Note HKS’000 HKS’000
ERBEE Non-current assets
M - S RERE Property, plant and equipment 15 5,547 6,659
REYE Investment properties 16 98,281 86,713
THE 3 K+ b {5 A i Leasehold land and land use rights 17 17,345 17,748
A7 I B Jointly controlled entities 19 1,367,863 1,143,062
FR/NC] Associates 20 44,735 36,841
AtEHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 656,640 576,576
BEEFTSTHEE Deferred income tax assets 32 658 673
2,191,069 1,868,272
REBEE Current assets
T Ho{E AR Land use rights 17 324,882 328,440
HEEERPYE Properties under development for sale 22 107,771 —
PR AEBLAS AX AN Deferred acquisition costs 23 18,346 15,781
IR B2 B W5k Insurance receivable 24 14,207 15,858
BREEE Reinsurance assets 25 4,536 4,892
H A & U BR K Other debtors 1,879 1,347
B R RES Prepayment and deposits 3,801 11,896
BRATVEBBERIIER Financial assets at fair value through
NEFEE profit or loss
—BEEEMN LT — listed equity securities held
IR HEFE 5 for trading 26 2,605 1,725
e RRITER Cash and bank balances 27 365,340 261,309
843,367 641,248
BB & Current liabilities
R & &) Insurance contracts 28 74,266 70,684
1R B FE A5 30 Insurance payable 29 7,562 9,772
HER RN IEEFER  Other creditors and accruals 45,217 30,036
Bz e Deposits received 30 125,172 —
IRITER Bank borrowings 31 109,710 89,590
JE < S BR A 18 Current income tax payable 358 109
362,285 200,191
RBEEFE Net current assets 481,082 441,057
HWEERABAERE Total assets less current liabilities 2,672,151 2,309,329
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2009 2008
T EB% T T BT T
Note HKS’000 HKS'000
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
RITER Bank borrowings 31 113,551 53,946
RILFTISF AR Deferred income tax liabilities 32 10,570 7,201
124,121 61,147
EEFE Net assets 2,548,030 2,248,182
[N Share capital 33(c) 459,429 459,429
HibfzEE Other reserves 33(a) 1,728,894 1,562,840
& B8 7% Al Retained profits
R AR 2 Proposed dividend 13,783 13,783
EAh Others 345,924 212,130
AATRERTE AEML Total equity attributable to equity
FEREEE holders of the Company 2,548,030 2,248,182
HEE Weng Ruo Tong
- Director
SEF Weng Jian Yu
- Director
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2009F 1231 H#ZE As at 31st December 2009
2009 2008
TrE BT T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FRBEE . Non-current assets
M - s MR Property, plant and equipment 15 2,149 2,424
a7 E Investment properties 16 44,950 38,713
THE b N+ o {55 F A Leasehold land and land use rights 17 2,793 2,813
MERE Subsidiaries 18 480,839 487,011
HE G B8 Jointly controlled entities 19 205,800 205,800
RUNCI Associates 20 10,746 =
AfHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 656,640 576,576
1403917 | 1313337
REBEE Current assets
H 4t i I BR 3Kk Other debtors 61 95
AR RIES Prepayment and deposits 836 1,040
B EEBERR Financial assets at fair value through
MEREE profit or loss
—FEEEM LD — listed equity securities held
P 75 75 for trading 26 113 222
e MIRITHET Cash and bank balances 27 184,350 170,529
_1ss360| 171886
RBEE \ Current liabilities
H A eI RR R R e B A Other creditors and accruals 9,233 25,220
2R e Deposits received 30 125,172 —
IRITER Bank borrowings 31 53,946 89,590
_esas1| 114810
B (BB BERE Net current (liabilities)/assets (2,991 57,076
HWEERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 1,400,926 | 1,370,413
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
ﬁﬁﬁg%ﬂ ¥ Bank borrowings 31 — 53,946
BLEFSTHRAaE Deferred income tax liabilities 32 10,423 7,201
________ 10423 | 61147
EEFE Net assets 1,390,503 1,309,266
& Share capital 33(c) 459,429 459,429
Hitn#E e Other reserves 33(b) 852,328 761,518
REE A Retained profits
BURAR 2 Proposed dividend 33(b) 13,783 13,783
EHAh Others 33(b) 64,963 74,536
R Total equity 1,390,503 1,309,266
SERE Weng Ruo Tong
EF Director
fEF Weng Jian Yu
EF Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

2 Z22009F 12 A31 H IE FE For the year ended 31st December 2009
Hith REFERER
[N #EE REEF e
Share Other Retained Total
capital reserves profits equity
BYFrT EBETT E¥TT BY¥%TFr
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
20081 H1H At 1st January 2008 459,429 1,920,735 252,174 2,632,338
REZ 2B E Total comprehensive income
B for the year — (520,165) 163,927 (356,238)
i 2 Dividend — — (27,566) (27,566)
BlE—xREtERT Share of movement of reserves
ZlittmeE of an associate — (352) — (352)
B Transfers — 162,622 (162,622) —
2008512 A31H & At 31st December 2008 and
20091 A 1H 1st January 2009 459,429 1,562,840 225,913 2,248,182
RFEE2EYE Total comprehensive income
Fak- for the year — 140,497 172,888 313,385
B Dividend — — (13,783) (13,783)
JEE — KRB E R A Share of movement of reserves
ZEEEEE of an associate — 246 — 246
BEER Transfers — 25,311 (25,311) —
2009F12H31H At 31st December 2009 459,429 1,728,894 359,707 2,548,030
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2 22009F 12 A31 H IE FE For the year ended 31st December 2009
2009 2008
TR BYTF T BT T
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
RETHES R L ZEE Net cash outflow from operations 36 (86,743) (104,300)
BEWERITF 5K 2 Interest income from bank deposits
received 2,045 6,439
BEAHE Interest paid (6,747) (7,017)
BENTRIR Tax paid (313) (410)
REZERSEHIRS TS  Net cash outflow from operating activities (91,758) (105,288)
KREEE Investing activities
B4 — %Hﬁﬁ EUNET 358 Dividends received from an associate 7,320 5,400
B — R R =5 E 88 Dividend received from a jointly
Hﬁ% controlled entity 9,200 —
(RE) B ERFE Deposit (refunded)/received for disposal
HERNERBEER of non-current asset classified as
Ze held-for-sale (12,142) 3,068
—XBERRIEEEN Loan repaid by an associate 1,375 30,467
— KB N R 2 Distribution in specie upon dissolution of
Bk an associate 175 —
BAREEERN L™ Purchase of listed equity securities held
IR 4 7% 75 for trading (112) (73)
HEREEEN LT Sale of listed equity securities held
% 1 75 for trading — 1,525
A - S RRME Purchase of property, plant and equipment (322) (341)
HEME SRR E Sales of property, plant and equipment 24 —
HEREME Sale of investment property — 8,725
HEMHELEsaEE Sale of available-for-sale financial assets = 13,561
REZBHRESRANEE Net cash inflow from investing activities 5,518 62,332
BREMNREARE R Net cash outflow before financing (86,240) (42,956)
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HEBESRER @)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

2 Z22009F 12 A31 H IE FE For the year ended 31st December 2009
2009 2008
it BETFT BT T
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
& Financing
BFRITEX Bank loan obtained 168,715 —
BEIEITER Bank loans repaid (90,000) (41,000)
(7R /IREBUBIERE 2  (Placement)/withdrawal of bank deposits
EERERTE ZRTT pursuant to insurance regulatory
EEN requirements (1,444) 232
(Fm) /RBUE# 17 3K (Placement)/withdrawal of pledged
deposits (63) 26,959
R FE AS Dividend paid (13,783) (27,566)
MERESHRA (RH) Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
R financing 63,425 (41,375)
HERBEEBEYRD Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (22,815) (84,331)
1B1B&FEZRER Cash and cash equivalents
REeEEY at 1st January 234,005 310,512
ReRBSEEYER Exchange gains on cash and
g &= cash equivalents 167 7,824
1N2A3MB&EFZEER Cash and cash equivalents
BE&ZEY at 31st December 211,357 234,005
ReRBASEEYHER Analysis of the balances of cash and
s cash equivalents
Be MIRTTHEF Cash and bank balances 27 365,340 261,309
B IRIB R EEEHMIE  Less: Bank deposits placed pursuant to
RE MR IRIT insurance regulatory
T3 requirements 27 (20,085) (18,641)
EHEFERK Pledged deposits 27 (8,726) (8,663)
Bz Deposits received 30 (125,172) —
211,357 234,005
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively refer to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in banking investment,
insurance, property development and investment,
strategic investment, industrial instrument manufacturing
and toll road investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Hong Kong.The address of its registered office is 17th
Floor, Fairmont House, 8 Cotton Tree Drive, Central, Hong
Kong.The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 22nd April
2010.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collectively refer
to all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and
have been aligned with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value
as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— available-for-sale financial assets

— financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss

— investment properties

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
the HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and judgement made by management are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity or where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.



— ==

LE R Annual Report 2009

B 75 e A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 EHEFHFBOR ()

2.2 EETEURSEE

AEEERMATHNEBSTMAGEM
PAZBRRN2009F 1 AV BRBZHBRFES
IRFEF - WERARE B ESABAFTER
MAERHESET ©

BB G ERE 1R IERT) [R5
HR 225 BRNFREES R
BANETR G MELNBR A DS
BIHAZIINMERTRAVR A HERE
Bx - EAEEMBA R H D
5%k - FTA EMUA N A AR
REBANFEAR - EFEEERRA
25 ERNELEE 2R RS R
(—EFHEERR) A2 - L2
5| & 8 EEHEMHFEE 2MNE
CRRARS SR EEBKE

o

B B

I

BB ERIFE 235 (KIE:]) [
ERA BRI - B AE
—HABBEEERELNEEK
RERME BZEERAN—FED ©
R AZIERTEAREEE RAVER
—B FTABIANER & M SRR Y

B/ 48R
=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

The following new standards and amendments to
standards issued by the HKICPA which are relevant to the
operations of the Group and are mandatory for the first
time for the financial year beginning on 1st January 2009
have been adopted.

— HKAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of Financial
Statements” requires details of changes in equity
during the year arising from transactions with equity
shareholders in their capacity as such to be
presented separately from all other income and
expenses in a revised consolidated statement of
changes in equity. All other items of income and
expenses are presented in the consolidated income
statement, if they are recognised as part of profit or
loss for the year, or otherwise in a new primary
statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.This change in presentation
has no effect on reported profit or loss, total income
and expenses or net assets for any period presented.

— HKAS 23 (Revised) “Borrowing Costs” requires
borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset to be capitalised as part of the cost
of that asset.This requirement has had no impact on
these consolidated financial statements as the
amendment was consistent with the policy already
adopted by the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

— Amendments to HKFRS 7 “Improving Disclosures
about Financial Instruments” require expanded
disclosures about the fair value measurement and
liquidity risk. The amendments introduce a three-
level fair value hierarchy according to the extent to
which they are based on observable market data. In
addition, the amendments enhance the existing
requirements for the disclosure of liquidity risk
primarily requiring a separate maturity analysis for
derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities. The
Group has taken advantage of the transitional
provisions set out in the amendments to HKFRS 7,
under which comparative information for the newly
required disclosures about the fair value
measurements of financial instruments has not been
provided.

As the Group's financial instruments measured at fair
value are based on quoted prices in active markets
and the Group did not hold any derivative financial
liabilities, the adoption of these amendments did not
have a significant impact on the disclosures in these
consolidated financial statements.

— HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” replaces HKAS 14
“Segment Reporting” It requires segment disclosure
to be based on the way that the Group’s chief
operating decision maker regards and manages the
Group (“management approach”), with the amounts
reported for each reportable segment being the
measures reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker about operating matters. This
contrasts with the presentation of segment
information in prior years which was based on a
disaggregation of the Group’s financial statements
into segments based on related products and
services and on geographical areas.The adoption of
HKFRS 8 has resulted in the presentation of segment
information in a manner that is more consistent with
internal reporting provided to the Group’s most
senior executive management, and has resulted in
different reportable segments being identified and
presented (Note 5). Corresponding amounts have
been provided on a basis consistent with the revised
segment information.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

— The Group also adopted a number of insignificant
amendments to standards and interpretations.These
are described under Note 2.2 of the 2008 annual
report. These amendments have had no material
impact on these consolidated financial statements.

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new
standards and amendments which are not yet effective for
the accounting year ended 31st December 2009 and which
have not been early adopted in these consolidated
financial statements.

Of these developments, the following relate to matters that
may be relevant to the Group’s operations and financial
statements:

— HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

— HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements

— HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

— HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

— HKICPA's improvements to HKFRSs 2009 published in
May 2009

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these new HKFRSs is expected to be in
the period of initial application.So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group's results of operations and financial
position.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made
up to 31st December.

(a) Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) controlled by the Group.Control existed when the
Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control
commenced until the date that control ceases. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed, where
necessary, in the consolidated financial statements to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost
of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest.The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group'’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill (Note 2.4). If
the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the
identifiable net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised profits but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned
by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries. Minority interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity holders
of the Company. Minority shareholders’share in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between minority interests and the equity holders of the
Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority shareholders
exceed their interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses applicable to the minority
shareholders, are charged against the Group’s interest
except to the extent that the minority shareholders have
a binding obligation to, and are able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest is
allocated all such profits until the minority shareholders’
share of losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.

Loans from minority shareholders and other contractual
obligations towards minority shareholders are presented
as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with Notes 2.17 and 2.18
depending on the nature of the liability.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2.10(b)).The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

(b) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method and are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the associates’net assets, unless they are classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale) (Note 2.14). The consolidated
income statement includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the associates for the year,
including any impairment loss on goodwill relating to the
investments in associates recognised for the year (Notes
2.4 and 2.10(b)). The carrying amount of the Group’s
investments in associates includes the carrying amount of
goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment losses)
identified on acquisition. Accounting policies of associates
have been changed, where necessary, in the consolidated
financial statements to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(b) Associates (Continued)

When the Group'’s share of losses exceeds its carrying
amount of the interest in an associate, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the
Group's interest in the associate is the carrying amount of
the investment under equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interests in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2.10(b)), unless they are classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale) (Note 2.14). The results of
associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend received and receivable.

(c) Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under
a contractual arrangement between the Group or the
Company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the Group or the Company
and one or more of the other parties share joint control
over the economic activity of the entity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(c) Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method and are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the jointly controlled entity’s net assets, unless it
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale) (Note 2.14). The
consolidated income statement includes the Group's share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the jointly
controlled entities for the year, including any impairment
loss on goodwill relating to the investments in jointly
controlled entities recognised for the year (Notes 2.4 and
2.10(b)). The carrying amount of the Group’s investments
in jointly controlled entities includes the carrying amount
of goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment losses)
identified on acquisition. Accounting policies of jointly
controlled entities have been changed, where necessary,
in the consolidated financial statements to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its carrying
amount of the interest in a jointly controlled entity, the
Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity. For this
purpose, the Group's interest in the jointly controlled entity
is the carrying amount of the investment under equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly controlled entities are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the
jointly controlled entities, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred,
in which case they are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(c) Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in jointly controlled entities are stated at cost
less impairment losses (Note 2.10(b)), unless they are
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale) (Note 2.14).The results of
jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

2.4 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity over the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and
is tested annually for impairment (Note 2.10(b)). In respect
of associates or jointly controlled entities, the carrying
amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of
the interests in the associates or jointly controlled entities.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination or an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, an associate or a
jointly controlled entity during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the gains or losses on disposal.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment, including buildings
held for own use, are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gain/loss on qualifying
cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment. As at the reporting dates,
the Group did not have any cash flow hedges of foreign
currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with that asset will flow to the Group and the
cost of that asset can be measured reliably. All other repair
and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined by
comparing the net proceeds with the carrying amount and
is recognised in the consolidated income statement on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value,
if any, over their estimated useful lives at the following
annual rates:

(a) Straight line method

Over the shorter of the
unexpired term of the

Buildings held for own use

lease and 30 years

Computer equipment 20% - 50%
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
(b) Reducing balance method
Furniture, fixtures and 10% - 20%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 20% - 25%
An asset’s residual value and useful life are reviewed, and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is

greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10(b)).

2.6 Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation or both, and are not occupied by the
companies within the Group. They comprise land held
under operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property on a property-by-
property basis when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is
accounted for as if it was a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is
based on active market prices and adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Investment property that is being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment property,
or for which the market has become less active, continues
to be measured at fair value.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repair and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair value and gain or loss on disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “Other gains — net’.

2.7 Land use rights

Cost of prepaid lease for land use rights is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the duration of the land use rights
or where there is impairment, the impairment is expensed
in the income statement. The amortisation of land use
rights is capitalised under the relevant assets when the
properties on the land are under construction. The
remaining carrying amount of the land use rights is
recognised as cost of sales when the relevant properties
are sold.

2.8 Financial assets
(a) Initial recognition

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

The Group recognises financial assets on the date it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.



—ZTT N FF K Annual Report 2009

B 75 e A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

FHEEHEBUR (8

2.8 LMEE ()
(a) FIURHERR ()

TREBEENRZQTERER  MAFE
—RERZEER - eBREETBR
BAHEEBERIE  NERERR
BREBAZEBEENIZHRA - HR
BAFHEEBESIIFNEREENR
ZRAR B RN

(b) AF KGR
() BRFEEBERIEK

IR R BIEREE B K 156 T R I 148
EEATEEBEDRIIFNEMEE -
BTEEREMERERE R FETEE
AR EMBRETANKE -

BEEENSREENERARIER
FERMALE  ABIRHERAE
aam—H5  HREAREBER
t - A IR R D I AR
BAIAR B » BIET AL - ST
TANDERHIFEE -

TREBEREN NMERRIATEREEE
REAFEBEBBRIIRK

— REEEANRREAFEER ¥
M2/

—  RIEEAHEHSRKER R A REE
R G AT

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
(a) Initial recognition (Continued)

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, which
normally will be equal to the transaction price plus,in case
of financial assets not held at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Transaction costs of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in the income statement immediately.

(b) Classification and measurement
(i) Atfairvalue through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets held for trading,
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition, but exclude those investments in
equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial assets held for trading are financial assets
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term, or are part of a portfolio of identified financial assets
that are managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges.

Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition when:

— the assets are managed, evaluated and reported
internally on a fair value basis;

— the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch which would otherwise
arise;
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)
(i) Atfairvalue through profit or loss (Continued)

— the asset contains an embedded derivative that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required under the contract; or

— the separation of the embedded derivatives from the
financial assets is not prohibited.

Financial assets under this category are subsequently
carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value are included in the consolidated income
statement within “Other gains — net” in the period in
which they arise. Upon disposal, the difference between
the net sale proceeds and the carrying value is included
in the consolidated income statement within “Other gains
— net”in the period in which they arise. Dividend income
is recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of “Other revenues” when the Group's right to receive
payment is established.

Assets in this category are classified as current assets if they
are either held for trading or are expected to be realised
within twelve months from the reporting date.

(i)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no
intention of trading the receivables.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any
(Note 2.10(a)(i)).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)
(i)  Loans and receivables (Continued)

They are included in current assets except for those with
maturities greater than or are expected to be realised after
twelve months from the reporting date which are classified
as non-current assets.

(iii)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Held-to-maturity financial assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less impairment
losses, if any (Note 2.10(a)(ii)).

They are included in current assets except for those with
maturities greater than twelve months after the reporting
date which are classified as non-current assets.

(iv) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other three categories above.
They include financial assets intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time, but which may be sold in
response to need for liquidity or changes in the market
environment.

59



60

B 25 s e R

B {s %@ % R 2 A Min Xin Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

EEEEHEOR )

2.8 L& E ()
(b) AREEEHE ()
(iv) AIEHE E)

AREECHEERAFEYE BT
BB ERMGMENREESFEHR
N ET R ETER - AlRKAE
Mk REBEBMmMER)YE (12
2.10@)(iii) ° BRBEBAREEHEEE
(Zlﬂffﬂ‘x 55 WINER BB IBRRTE

RN ARFEESMELEZRERA
ﬂ&ﬁ@ﬂﬁ REMEEKEAER - Wi
RRERANIEEEGHREEANZR -

AHEESREENLER HLER
EREHEMGRIRFRERRENE
B ARERHRREMEE a2 R
AARHERBEHRRESEHNDEM
BABZEK -

BRIFEREEERAEZMA LT+ —EA
NHEZREE @ BRIMFEEIEFE
MEBEEN -

(c) H&IRTERR

EREREEWRRERENENLE
MR EER  MAKEESHEERE
B RBRMORERERR  SRE
ERK IEHER -

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)
(iv)  Available-for-sale (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value
except for investments in equity securities that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any (Note 2.10(a)(iii)). Unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve, except for impairment losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary items such
as debt securities which are recognised in the income
statement.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold, gains
or losses on disposal include the difference between the
net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the
accumulated fair value adjustments which are previously
recognised in other comprehensive income shall be
reclassified from equity to the income statement.

They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the assets within
twelve months from the reporting date.

(c) De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
(d) Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their
quoted market prices (bid prices) at the reporting date
without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a
quoted market price on a recognised stock exchange or a
price from a broker/dealer for non-exchange traded
financial instruments, or if the market for it is not active,
the fair value of the instrument is estimated using
valuation techniques that provide a reliable estimate of
prices which could be obtained in actual market
transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated future cash flows are based on management’s
best estimates and the discount rate used is a market rate
at the reporting date applicable for an instrument with
similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing models
are used, inputs are based on market data at the reporting
date.

2.9 Hedging
The Group does not adopt hedge accounting for derivative

financial instruments which may qualify as eligible cash
flow hedges or fair value hedges.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets
(a) Financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the assets (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or a
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about the following
loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— the Group granting to the issuer or obligor, for
economic or legal reasons relating to their financial
difficulty, a concession that a lender would not
otherwise consider;

— it becoming probable that the issuer or obligor will
enter into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

—  observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
group of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial asset in the
group, including:
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)

— adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

— national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.
(i)  Loans and receivables

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement.

If,in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in the income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Held-to-maturity

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
held-to-maturity financial assets carried at amortised cost
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the financial asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. If a held-to-maturity financial asset
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement.

If,in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in the income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)
(iii)  Available-for-sale

In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the securities below their cost is considered in determining
whether the assets are impaired.

If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on those financial assets
previously recognised in the income statement — is
removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are
carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in the income
statement, the impairment loss is reversed through the
income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on
equity securities are not reversed through the income
statement. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(b) Other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there
is an indication that a non-financial asset is impaired.
Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are
at least tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for a non-financial asset is required, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount
of an asset is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e., a
cash-generating unit).

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement
for the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(b) Other non-financial assets (Continued)

Previously recognised impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed in subsequent periods. A previously
recognised impairment losses on other assets are reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of an asset, however
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any amortisation or
depreciation), had no impairment loss been recognised
against the asset in prior periods. Reversal of impairment
loss is credited to the income statement in the period in
which it arises.

(c) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim Financial Reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (Notes 2.10(a) and (b)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period.This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.

2.11 Insurance contracts classification
The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer
significant insurance risk. The Group defines significant
insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits
on the occurrence of an insured event that are at least 10%
more than the benefits payable if the insured event did
not occur.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Insurance contracts
(a) Classification

Insurance contracts are classified depending on the
duration of risk and whether or not the terms and
conditions are fixed.

Short-term insurance contracts issued by the Group are
casualty and property insurance contracts.

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Group’s
customers against the risk of causing harm to third parties
as a result of their legitimate activities. Damages covered
include both contractual and non-contractual events.The
typical protection offered is designed for employers who
become legally liable to pay compensation to injured
employees (employers’ liability) and for individual and
business customers who become liable to pay
compensation to a third party for bodily harm or property
damage (public liability).

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the
Group’s customers for damage suffered to their properties
or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake
commercial activities on their premises could also receive
compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the
inability to use the insured properties in their business
activities (business interruption cover).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(a) Classification (Continued)

For all these contracts, premiums are recognised as
revenue (earned premiums) proportionally over the period
of coverage.The portion of premium received on in-force
contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the reporting
date is reported as the unearned premium liability.
Premiums are shown before deduction of commission.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to
income statement as incurred based on the estimated
liability for compensation owed to contract holders or
third parties damaged by the contract holders. They
include direct and indirect claims settlement costs and
arise from events that have occurred up to the reporting
date even if they have not yet been reported to the Group.
The Group does not discount its liabilities for unpaid
claims. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated using the
input of assessments for individual cases reported to the
Group and statistical analyses for the claims incurred but
not reported, and to estimate the expected ultimate cost
of more complex claims that may be affected by external
factors (such as court decisions).

(b) Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with
and are related to securing new contracts and renewing
existing contracts are capitalised as an intangible asset,
DAC. All other costs are recognised as expenses when
incurred. The DAC is subsequently amortised over the life
of the contracts as premium is earned.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(c) Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract
liabilities net of related DAC assets. In performing these
tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses
are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to income
statement initially by writing off DAC and subsequently
by establishing a provision for losses arising from liability
adequacy tests (the unexpired risk provision). Any DAC
written off as a result of this test cannot subsequently be
reinstated.

(d) Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under
which the Group is compensated for losses on one or more
contracts issued by the Group and that meet the
classification requirements for insurance contracts in Note
2.11 are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Contracts
that do not meet these classification requirements are
classified as financial assets. Insurance contracts entered
into by the Group under which the contract holder is
another insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included with
“Insurance contracts” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its
reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance
assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due
from reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are
dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising
under the related reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts
recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured
consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the
terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities
are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance contracts
and are recognised as an expense over the terms of
reinsurance contracts and are included with “Insurance
payable” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(d) Reinsurance contracts held (Continued)

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment
on a regular basis. If there is objective evidence that the
reinsurance asset is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable
amount and recognises that impairment loss in the income
statement. The Group gathers the objective evidence that
a reinsurance asset is impaired using the same process
adopted for loans and receivables. The impairment loss is
also calculated following the same method used for those
financial assets. These processes are described in Note
2.10(a)(i).

(e) Receivables and payables related to insurance

contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due.These
include amounts due to and from agents, brokers and
insurance contract holders.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the
insurance receivable to its recoverable amount and
recognises that impairment loss in the income statement.
The Group gathers the objective evidence that an
insurance receivable is impaired using the same process
adopted for loans and receivables. The impairment loss is
also calculated under the same method used for those
financial assets. These processes are described in Note
2.10(a)(i).

(f) Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some insurance contracts permit the Group to sell (usually
damaged) property acquired in settling a claim (salvage).
The Group may also have the right to pursue third parties
for payment of some or all costs (subrogation).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(f) Salvage and subrogation reimbursements (Continued)

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability
for claims, and salvage property is recognised in other
assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is the
amount that can reasonably be recovered from the
disposal of the property.

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability
for claims and are recognised in other assets when the
liability is settled. The allowance is the assessment of the
amount that can be recovered from the action against the
liable third party.

2.13 Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale is included as
current assets and stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to estimated sale proceeds of the properties sold
in the ordinary course of business less costs to complete
development and estimated selling expenses.

Development costs of properties comprise construction
costs, amortisation of land use rights, borrowing costs and
professional fees incurred during the development period.
On completion, the development costs of properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.

2.14 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held
for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if the carrying amount is recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through a
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is
available for sale in its present condition.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for
sale (Continued)

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification.Then, on initial classification as held for sale
and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for
certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements of
the Group are concerned are deferred tax assets, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities and associates) and investment
properties. These assets, even if held for sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the policies
set out elsewhere in Note 2.

As long as a non-current asset is classified as held for sale,
orisincluded in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.

If a non-current asset previously classified as held for sale,
or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale, are no longer met the recognition criteria stated
above, the Group measures that asset at the lower of its
carrying amount before that asset was classified as held
for sale, adjusted for any depreciation, amortisation or
revaluations that would have been recognised had that
asset not been classified as held for sale,and its recoverable
amount at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell.

The Group includes any required adjustment to the
carrying amount of a non-current asset that ceases to be
classified as held for sale in income from continuing
operations at the date of the subsequent decision not to
sell.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Other debtors

Other debtors are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash investments
with original maturity of three months or less from the date
of investment less bank overdrafts.

2.17 Financial liabilities — Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial liability,
including fees and commissions paid to the borrowers.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

2.18 Financial liabilities — Creditors and payables

Creditors and payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with Note 2.19, creditors and payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19 Financial guarantee liabilities

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e., the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for
a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date that the guarantee
was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the
higher of the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liabilities
relating to financial guarantees are taken to the income
statement.

2.20 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
(Continued)

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.When the inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation.The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed,
for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

2.22 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at closing exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging
reserve as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges. As at the reporting date, the Group
did not have any cash flow hedges or net investment
hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities, such as equity instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss in the income statement. Translation
differences on non-monetary items, such as equity
investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are included in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity in the investment revaluation
reserve.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities items in their statement of
financial position are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

— income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates, unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing at the
transaction dates. In such case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions; and
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies (Continued)

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investment in foreign operations, and of borrowings
and other currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange translation reserve.When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to the income statement as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

2.23 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in income statement except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
they are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the assets can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward.The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on the same taxable entity.

2.24 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.25 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised on the following basis provided it

is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount can be measured reliably:
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income.

(b) Rental income from investment properties

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in the income statement in equal installments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable.

(c) Management fees

Management fees are recognised upon the provision of
services.

(d) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.

(e) Short-term insurance contracts

Premiums from the sale of short-term insurance contracts
are recorded when written.

2.26 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement in
the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceased when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or complete.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.27 Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (including those for leasehold land) net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease
periods.

2.28 Employee benefits
(a) Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and annual bonuses are paid or accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. When payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

(b) Retirement benefit costs

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. These pension plans are defined
contribution schemes which the Group pays fixed
contributions and has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid.The Group has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
services rendered in the current and prior periods.

The Group's contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.28 Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Employee leaves entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(d) Share-based compensation

A jointly controlled entity of the Group operates an equity
participation plan under which its shares are granted to
eligible employees for services rendered. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange of the shares
granted net of any consideration received is recognised
as an expense.

(e) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed
to either terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal plan or
providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy without realistic
possibility of withdrawal. Benefits falling due more than
twelve months after reporting date are discounted to
present value.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.29 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in these consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group's various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products or services, the
nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

2.30 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the equity holders of the

Company is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved for distribution.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.31 Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial

statements, parties are considered to be related to the

Group if:

(a)

(d)

(e)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control or joint control
the Group or exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control or common significant influence;

the party is an associate or a joint venture of the
Group;

the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's significant shareholders,
or a close family member of such an individual, or is
an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred
toin (a) or is an entity under the control, joint control
or significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the

entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
concerning the future that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in these
consolidated financial statements. The application of
assumptions and estimates means that any changes of
them, either due to changes of management'’s judgement
or the evolvement of the actual circumstances, would
cause the Group’s financial position and results to differ.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
believes that the assumptions and estimates that have
been made in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are appropriate and that the
consolidated financial statements therefore present fairly
the Group’s financial position and results in all material
respects.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months are
discussed below.

(a) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value of investment properties
held by the Group is current prices in an active market for
similar lease or other contracts. In the absence of such
information, the Group determines the amount within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making this
judgement, the Group considers information including
current prices in an active market for properties of different
nature, condition or location (or subject to different lease
or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences
or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices. As at 31st December 2009, the fair value of
the Group’s investment properties was approximately
HK$98.28 million (Note 16).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Casualty and property insurance contract
liabilities

For casualty and property insurance contracts, estimates
have to be made for both the expected ultimate cost of
claims reported at the reporting date and for the expected
ultimate cost of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR")
at the reporting date. It may take a significant period of
time before the ultimate claims cost can be established
with certainty and for some type of policies, IBNR claims
form the majority of the insurance liability in the
consolidated statement of financial position.The ultimate
cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range
of standard actuarial claims projection techniques, such
as the Bornhuetter-Ferguson (“BF”) method.

The main assumptions underlying these techniques is that
past claims development experience can be used to
project future claims development and hence ultimate
claims costs. As such, these methods extrapolate the
development of paid and incurred losses, average costs
per claim and claim numbers based on the observed
development of earlier years and expected loss ratios.
Historical claims development is mainly analysed by
accident year, as well as by significant business lines and
claim types. Large claims are usually separately addressed,
either by being reserved at the face value if loss adjustor
estimates or separately projected in order to reflect their
future development. The assumptions used are those
implicit in the historic claims development data on which
the projections are based. Additional qualitative
judgement is used to assess the extent to which past
trends may not apply in future (for example to reflect one-
off occurrences, changes in external or market factors such
as public attitudes of claiming, economic conditions, levels
of claims inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well
as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy conditions
and claims handling procedures), so as to arrive at the
estimated ultimate cost of claims that present the likely
outcome from the range of possible outcomes, taking
account of all the uncertainties involved.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made. As at 31st December 2009, the Group had deferred
tax liabilities of approximately HK$10.57 million (Note 32).
Should the actual applicable tax rate differ by 1%, the
deferred income tax liabilities would increase or decrease
by approximately HK$0.49 million.

(d) Valuation of available-for-sale financial assets

In April 2009, the unlisted equity interest in Fujian Hua
Yuan City Construction Environment Protection Co., Ltd.
(“Fujian Hua Yuan”) held by the Group was reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets to associates as the
Group can exercise significant influence over the financial
and operating policy decision of Fujian Hua Yuan thereon
(Note 21(c)).

Before reclassification of the investment in Fujian Hua Yuan
to investments in associates, the Group had made an
assessment of the fair value of Fujian Hua Yuan by
reference to an evaluation of the extent to which the fair
value is less than its cost, the financial health and results
of operation of and near-term business outlook for Fujian
Hua Yuan. According to the result of assessment, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of approximately HK$0.03
million in the consolidated income statement during the
year and the fair value was re-measured as the cost of the
investments in associates.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
jointly controlled entities

(i)  Xiamen International Bank and its subsidiaries (“XIB

Group”)

The Group’s major jointly controlled financial institution,
XIB Group, is principally engaged in the banking business
(Note 19).In preparing its statutory consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the China Accounting
Standards (“CAS”), certain critical accounting estimates
and judgement have been applied as described below:

—  Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted
in active markets are determined by XIB Group using
valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
discounted cash flows analysis and models.To the extent
practical, models use only observable data, however areas
such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities
and correlations require management to make estimates.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
reported fair value of financial instruments.
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B {s %@ % R 2 A Min Xin Holdings Limited

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(i)  Xiamen International Bank and its subsidiaries (“XIB
Group”) (Continued)

— Impairment allowances on loans and advances

XIB Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment
regularly, and would further assess impairment loss when
there are indications of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from an individual loan, observable data indicating
that there has been an adverse change in the payment
status of borrowers in a group (e.g., payment delinquency
or default), or national or local economic conditions that
correlated with defaults on assets in the group. The
individual impairment loss is based upon management’s
best estimate of the present value of cash flows which are
expected to be received discounted at the original
effective interest rate.When assessing the impairment loss
of a loan portfolio under the collective evaluation method,
management uses estimates based on historical loss
experience, which subjects to adjustments according to
observable data to reflect the current economic
conditions, for assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows.The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(i)  Xiamen International Bank and its subsidiaries (“XIB
Group”) (Continued)

—  Valuation of long-term equity investments

As at 31st December 2009, an unlisted equity investment
held by XIB Group was measured at cost in accordance
with CAS. For the purpose of financial reporting of the
Group in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 2.3(c), the Group has appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair value of the equity
investment held by XIB Group and re-measured at fair
value in these consolidated financial statements.

The fair value of the equity investment has been estimated
using a market comparison approach by the independent
professional valuer.Based on the market ratio (e.g., price/
earning and price/book ratios) of a number of listed
companies engaged in similar industries as the investee
and the investee’s historical financial information,
management of the Group makes estimates and
judgement on the appropriate adjustments required to
reflect the circumstances of the investee, including the
liquidity discount applicable to the shares of the investee
as compared to those of a listed company, for fair value
estimation purposes. As at 31st December 2009, the
Group’s attributable share of the fair value gain (after
deferred tax adjustment) arising from this investment,
which is accounted for in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve, was approximately HK$123.92 million.
To the extent that the liquidity discount rate differs by +/-
1%, the Group’s investment revaluation reserve (after tax)
will decrease and increase by approximately HK$1.91
million respectively.
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B {s %@ % R 2 A Min Xin Holdings Limited

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(ii) Min Faith Investments Limited and its subsidiaries
(“MFL Group™)

MFL Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing
and distribution of digital instruments and auto-
equipments, and investing in strategic investments for
income and capital appreciation purposes (Note 19). In
preparing its statutory consolidated financial statements
under HKFRSs, certain critical accounting estimates and
judgement have been applied as described below:

—  Valuation of available-for-sale financial assets

As at 31st December 2009, MFL Group held less than 5%
equity interests in both two unlisted companies
incorporated and operated in Mainland China and
measured the investments at cost of approximately
HK$18.37 million. According to the Group’s preliminary
assessment of the fair value of these equity investments
using different valuation techniques, the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant and
the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, hence these equity investments are precluded from
measuring at fair value.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors

The Group’s business activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks including insurance risk, market risk
(including currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. This note summarises the
Group’s exposure to these risks, as well as its objectives,
policies and processes for managing and the methods
used to measure these risks.

The Group’s investment policy is to prudently invest its
funds in a manner which satisfies the Group’s liquidity
requirements and generates optimal returns to the Group
within a manageable risk level. The Group’s overall risk
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s performance.

The Board of Directors (“Board”), representing the interest
of shareholders, is the highest decision making authority
of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board has adopted procedures for
evaluating and approving significant investment decisions.
Given the nature of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities, their risk exposures are monitored by the Group
primarily on a qualitative basis.

The General Manager (“GM”) is responsible for managing
the Group’s various types of risks, approving detailed risk
management policies, and approving material risk
exposures or transactions within his authority delegated
by the Board.The other members of the management team
assist the GM in fulfilling his responsibilities for the day-
to-day management of risks.

The Group has put in place an internal control system,
including establishment of Group’s organisation structure
that sets adequately clear lines of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies,
procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide
sufficient independence of the control functions from the
business areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties
throughout the organisation which helps to promote
appropriate internal control environment.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.This
section summarises these risks and the way the Group
manages such risks.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the
principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance
contracts is that the actual claims exceed the carrying
amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or severity of claims and benefits
are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random
and the actual number and amount of claims will vary from
year to year from the level established using statistical
techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk
diversification in terms of type and amount of risk,
geographical location and type of industry covered.

(i) Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected
by several factors.The most significant are the increasing
level of awards for the damage suffered and the increase
in number of cases coming to court that were inactive or
latent for a long period of time. Estimated inflation is also
a significant factor due to the long period typically
required to settle these cases.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(i) Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting
strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and claims
handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the
underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type and
amount of risk, industry and geographical location.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk
selection criteria. For example, the Group has the right to
re-price, cancel or not to renew a contract, it can impose
deductibles and it has the right to reject the payment of
fraudulent claim.Insurance contracts also entitle the Group
to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs
(subrogation). Unless the legislation requires, the Group'’s
strategy limits the total exposure of any individual policy
to a certain amounts.

The reinsurance arrangements include facultative,
proportional treaties and excess of loss coverage. The
effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the Group
should not suffer total net insurance losses more than the
prescribed amount. In addition to the overall reinsurance
program, additional reinsurance protection for any
individual risk will be arranged when necessary.

The concentration of insurance risk before and after
reinsurance by territory in relation to type of insurance
accepted is summarised below, with reference to the
carrying amount of the insurance liabilities (gross and net
of reinsurance) arising from insurance contracts:
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4 DR R | B s B (A 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 PR B B w B IR & (A 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) PR )= B (4) (a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(i) BEEREEREEREE (&) (i)  Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)
2009
-REZEE EBHREE
AE General Accident Hit an
Motor liability  and health Others Total
BT BT BETFT BT BETFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
£8 Gross
55 Hong Kong 47,925 2,662 18,061 878 69,526
i Macao 213 412 490 3,625 4,740
RIREEEE £5 Total insurance liabilities, gross 48,138 3,074 18,551 4,503 74,266
et Net
&5 Hong Kong 44,659 2,560 18,008 212 65,439
R Macao 213 410 426 3,242 4,291
RIREFEE 38 Total insurance liabilities, net 44,872 2,970 18,434 3,454 69,730
2008
—RERETE  ENRER
"E General Accident 4] vk
Motor liability ~ and health Others Total
BEFTT BEFTT BEFTT EETT BETTL
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
e Gross
& Hong Kong 48,839 2,879 12,733 1,257 65,708
B Macao 216 419 832 3,509 4,976
RBRETRE £8 Total insurance liabilities, gross 49,055 3,298 13,565 4,766 70,684
E Net
&h Hong Kong 45,703 2,687 12,731 671 61,792
B Macao 204 407 675 2,714 4,000
RBRETERE 34 Total insurance liabilities, net 45,907 3,094 13,406 3,385 65,792
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claims
payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claim-
occurrence basis.The Group is liable for all insured events
that occurred during the term of the contract even if the
loss is discovered after the end of the contract term.As a
result, liability claims are settled over a long period of time
and a larger element of claims provision relates to incurred
but not reported claims. There are several variables that
affect the amount and timing of cash flows from these
contracts. These mainly relate to the inherent risks by
individual contract holders and the risk management
procedures adopted. The compensation paid on these
contracts is the monetary awards granted for bodily injury
suffered. Such awards are lump-sum payments that are
calculated as the present value of the lost of earnings and
rehabilitation expenses that the injured party will incur as
a result of the accident.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to
be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group takes
all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate
information regarding its claims exposures. However, given
the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely
that the final outcome will prove to be different from the
original liability established.The liability for these contracts
comprises a provision for IBNR, a provision for reported
claims not yet paid and a provision for unexpired risks at
the reporting date.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claims
payments (Continued)

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both
reported or not), the Group’s estimation techniques are a
combination of loss-ratio-based estimates (where the loss
ratio is defined as the ratio between the ultimate cost of
insurance claims and insurance premiums earned in a
particular financial year in relation to such claims) and an
estimate based upon actual claim experience using
predetermined formulae where greater weight is given to
actual claims experience as time passes.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater
degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of
settling claims already notified to the Group, where
information about the claim event is available. In
estimating the amount of IBNR which makes reasonable
provisions for the claims and the unexpired risks, it is
necessary to project future claims cost and associated
claims expenses and simulates the outcomes of claims
liabilities using models. These models are simplified
representation of many legal, social and economic forces
and may not be entirely appropriate for the types of
insurance business being analysed. |t is certain that actual
future claims and claims expenses will not develop exactly
as projected and may vary significantly from the
projections.

In estimating the liability for the costs of reported claims
not yet paid the Group considers any information available
from loss adjusters and information on the costs of settling
claims with similar characteristics in previous periods.
Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or
projected separately in order to allow for the possible
distortive effect of their development and incidence on
the rest of the portfolio.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claims
payments (Continued)

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques to
estimate the required level of provisions.This provides a
greater understanding of the trends inherent in the
experience being projected.The projections given by the
various methodologies also assist in estimating the range
of possible outcomes. The most appropriate estimation
technique is selected taking into account the
characteristics of the business class and the extent of the
development of each accident year.

(iii)  Process used to decide on assumptions

The Group uses several statistical methods to incorporate
the various assumptions made in order to estimate the
ultimate cost of claims.The choice of selected results for
each accident year of each class of business depends on
an assessment of the technique that has been most
appropriate to observed historical developments. In
certain instances, different techniques or combination of
techniques have been selected for individual accident
years or groups of accident years within the same class of
business.

In estimating the claims liabilities of the Group’s motor
insurance portfolio, the paid and incurred loss
development methods supplemented by BF method are
applied.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(iii)  Process used to decide on assumptions (Continued)

The paid and incurred loss development methods use
historical patterns of claim to project the ultimate cost of
the claims,and the BF method relies on a gradual transition
from an estimated loss ratio to an experience-rated
development. BF method is applied to the more recent
accident years, for which the paid and incurred loss
development methods may yield less accurate results.The
industry wide trends in the claims costs, direct and
reinsurance premium rates and underwriting profitability
for the motor insurance business in Hong Kong are also
considered in the ultimate claims liabilities estimation.The
estimation of the premium liabilities is made by reference
to the projected ultimate loss ratios, which is the estimated
ultimate claims liability divided by the earned premium.

For other class of insurance portfolio of the Group, the
incurred loss development methods supplement with the
earned premium and average incurred loss year
development are used to project the estimated ultimate
loss ratio.

(iv) Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance and
claims development tables

The reasonableness of the estimation process is tested by
an analysis of sensitivity around several difference
scenarios.The change in the monetary awards granted for
bodily injury suffered and also the employers’ liability
claims is the most critical to the assumptions used to
estimate the liabilities for these insurance contracts.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iv) Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance and
claims development tables (Continued)

The Group believes that the liability for these claims carried
at the reporting date is adequate. However, an increase of
10% in the cost of these claims would require the
recognition of an additional loss of approximately HK$3.1
million (2008: approximately HK$3.1 million) net of
reinsurance.

The impact on the profit before taxation described above
does not take into account of changes in other variables,
as they are considered to be less material. Such an
assessment and the relative materiality of individual
variables may change in the future.

In addition to scenario testing, the development of
insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Group’s
ability to estimate the ultimate value of claims. The top
half of the table below illustrates how the Group’s estimate
of total claims outstanding for each accident year has
changed at successive reporting dates.The bottom half of
the table reconciles the cumulative claims to the amount
appearing in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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4 PR B S s L 4B B (48) 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 PR B B w B IR & (A 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) PR )= B (4) (a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(iv) BRREDIT — R REEEREL (iv) Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance and
R F R () claims development tables (Continued)
RIGAE(E —E& Insurance claims — gross
EHEE Accident year 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 483 Total
BEFT EEFr  BETT  EETn BRI | AETR
HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$’000
EE REBEKR Estimate of ultimate claims costs
REHEER at end of accident year 36,003 29,854 31,045 26,780 34,938
—Fi one year later 27,552 17,114 20,980 17,412
—Fk two years later 27,727 17,062 22,798
=Fk three years later 26,659 15,329
ikt four years later 27,603
2EEE B Current estimate of cumulative claims 27,603 15,329 22,798 17,412 34938 | 118,080
2L RHAHK Cumulative payment to date (26,322) (14,146) (19,678) (13,391) (11,694) | (85,231)
1,281 1,183 3,120 4,021 23,244 32,849
TEERFE Liability in respect of prior years 1,577
34,426
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iv) Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance and

claims development tables (Continued)

Insurance claims — net

ERER Accident year 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 8% Total
BEFT BETrT EETr  E¥Fr  EETr | BETR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 | HKS'000
fhEr AR BB R AR Estimate of ultimate claims costs
REHEE at end of accident year 28,800 24,421 25,560 23,143 31,189
—F%& one year later 25,614 16,276 20,327 16,592
—Fk two years later 25,485 16,116 22,101
=¥k three years later 24,639 14,382
Mm% four years later 25,583
RSt EEE e Current estimate of cumulative claims 25,583 14,382 22,101 16,592 31,189 | 109,847
ZS2HER Cumulative payment to date (24302  (13199)  (18981)  (12594)  (11,418) | (80,494)
1,281 1,183 3,120 3,998 19,771 29,353
AEER Liability in respect of prior years 1,192
30,545

AEERETRPRBRERS L — &7
BN DRER » BLBE—ERET

The Group has in place a series of effective reinsurance

covers on a number of short-term insurance products that

have remained unchanged in recent years.




B 75 e A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B K% b 765 Dl B 4 B (D)

4.1 PR B B B L B R & (4
(b) T35 Rl B

miZEREEE AT IS XK ERED
BEHHREBENER - ARENTSRA
RREEMEFENBELEREERT
B - REREERARIMNEER - FEERK
SERKE I BEEERK -

AEENREREEBERERSRRE
BRI - WECR B RR 122 Il 72 A 52 2 7K
FZA - AEERESEUMBELS
ZRMENRER S TABERIAKLER
% - WG TS E R - AR 2w
Bl - EREERE R FDEEMARRR o

() EXER

SN GEE L e A2 R =R 2 AR R D B BUA b
KA ENREHBEBERENAR - AEH
TEEFBRDPEAMEE - BUAR
ERRBEEME BN SN R FR
Bz R IRERELNINERR -
TESRAREOER -

B {s %@ % R 2 A Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss that results from movements
in market rates and prices. The Group’s market risk arises
from trading position in the financial instruments taken
from proprietary trading which is subject to mark-to-
market valuation.The risk includes potential losses arising
from changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices.

The Group’s risk management objective is to enhance
shareholder value by maintaining risk exposures within
acceptable limits. The Group’s control of market risk is
based on restricting individual operations to trading
within a list of permissible instruments authorised by the
Board to ensure all risks arising are thoroughly identified,
properly measured and adequately controlled.

(i) Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to adverse
movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments denominated in foreign currencies.The Group
mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations denominated in various currencies, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”).
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

In respect of receivables and payables held in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept to an acceptable level, by buying and selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to address short-
term imbalances.

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loan or, in the case of
entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars,
in either Hong Kong dollar or the United States dollar.
Given this, management does not expect that there will
be any significant currency risk associated with the Group’s
borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure at the reporting date to currency risk arising from
recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which

they relate:

2009 2008

AR Fr| AREFT

RMB ‘000 RMB ‘000

X£EH The Group

H b fE U BR 5K Other debtors 2 11
BRI R KkZE Prepayment and deposits 264 370
He KIRITHET Cash and bank balances 119,476 13,719
HEaEBER R ERE B Other creditors and accruals (810) (14,502)
Blize Deposits received (109,800) —
9,132 (402)
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4 DRl B B 5 L B B (A 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 PR B B w B IR & (A 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) 5 KR () (b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) EEEE(E) (i)  Currency risk (Continued)
2009 2008
AREFrT| ARKTT
RMB 000 RMB 000
AATF The Company
H th & I AR R Other debtors 1 —
BZEEZS Prepayment and deposits 264 370
e MIRITHEF Cash and bank balances 118,655 12,725
HiENERERRESER Other creditors and accruals (809) (14,501)
B iz e Deposits received (109,800) —
8,311 (1,406)
TRINTAKERARFNREHRAREE The following table indicates the approximate change in
fEXHBMN SRR F AR ERER the Group’s and the Company’s profit after taxation (and
HAREE RARANRE RN (RIRE retained profits) and other components of consolidated
) RERE R EMAN I D EERK equity in response to reasonably possible changes in the
R - foreign exchange rates to which the Group and the

Company have significant exposure at the reporting date:
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4 PR B S s L B B B () 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 PRI e B 2 Il g TR 2% (70) 4.1 TInsurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) TR (B (b) Market risk (Continued)
() E¥mEkE(E) (i) Currency risk (Continued)
2009 2008

SERGE HREERNR High i SHERBE  HBRHREENR HEEAl
b/ (FH) RERANFE ARBANFE  LA/OCH) REEANPE ARFINYE

Increase/ Effect on Effect on Increase/ Effect on Effect on
(decrease) in profit after other (decrease) in profit after other
foreign taxation and components foreign taxation and components
exchangerate retained profits of equity exchangerate  retained profits of equity
Ak BEFT BETFT At BEFT BEFL
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HKS'000 HKS'000
X5H The Group

AR% Renminbi 5 521 - 5 (23) —
(5) (521) = (5) 23 —

YN The Company
AE% Renminbi 5 474 - 5 (80) =
(5) (474) - (5) 80 -
LRSRESTNREEXREHINE The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
WHBAEREEMFAZBAERERE assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates had
BRANeRIAZEERRE - MAAE occurred and had been applied to re-measure those
HME S (RN ) s T E o financial instruments held by each of the Group’s entities

which expose to currency risk at the reporting date, and
that all other variables, in particular interest rate, remained
constant.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates
over the period until the next reporting date. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the
Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar would be
materially unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of the United States dollar against other currencies.
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on profit after
taxation and equity of each of the Group’s entities
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the reporting date for presentation purposes.The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008.

(ii)  Pricerisk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk on investments
held by the Group classified on the consolidated statement
of financial position as available-for-sale financial assets
or as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group's equity investments held for trading are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy or
sell trading securities are based on the performance of
individual securities compared to that of the index and the
Group’s liquidity needs. Investments held in the available-
for-sale portfolio comprise equity investments listed on
the Stock Exchange of Shanghai. The listed equity
investments have been chosen based on their long term
growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations.

i@
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4 DRl S B s e e B () 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 PR B B B % L B R & (A 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) iR B () (b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) 1EEE LR (&) (i) Price risk (Continued)
TRINRAEBRAARREHRAREE The following table indicates the approximate change in
HERETSESH LIRS g the Group’s and the Company’s profit after taxation (and
A B KRS E AR B R AR RHBRT retained profits) and other components of consolidated
A (RRB RN Rira#Em M equity in response to reasonably possible changes in the
REDEENARNTE relevant stock market index for listed investments to which

the Group and the Company have significant exposure at
the reporting date:

2009 2008
HHEREE HRHEGEHER HEREM ARERER  HRBEETIR HER M
I#/(TH) RERINFE ARBINFE  L7/(TH) REEFIDFE AfHs0we
Increase/ Effect on Effect Increase/ Effect on Effect
(decrease) profit after on other (decrease) profit after on other
in the relevant taxation and components in the relevant taxation and components
risk variance  retained profits of equity risk variance  retained profits of equity
g9l BB BRI BAL BETT BETT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HKS'000
F5H The Group
IhiEZHER Stock market index in
BHiEH respect of listed
investments
EE R Hang Seng Index 5 m - 5 61 -
(5) (111) = (5) (61) =
HBRAES Shanghai Composite Index 5 = 9,850 5 = 17,170
(5) - (9,850) (5 - (17,170)
A4 The Company
IHREZHE Stock market index in
BhEY respect of listed
investments
BEER Hang Seng Index 5 16 — 5 3 —
(5) (16) = (5) (3) —
LBGRaES Shanghai Composite Index 5 - 9,850 5 = 17,170
(5) = (9,850) (5 — (17,170)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the reasonably possible changes in the stock market
index had occurred and had been applied to the exposure
to equity price risk in existence at the reporting date. It is
also assumed that the fair values of the Group’s and the
Company’s equity investments would change in
accordance with the historical correlation with the relevant
stock market index, that none of the Group’s and the
Company’s available-for-sale investments would be
considered impaired as a result of a reasonably possible
decrease in the relevant stock market index, and that all
other variables remained constant. The stated changes
represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in the relevant stock market index over
the period until the next reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2008.

(iii) ~ Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk
that future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities mainly
comprise bank deposits and bank borrowings
denominated in floating rates which expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risks.The Group manages these risks
primarily through maintaining the maturity profile of these
assets and liabilities within a short period and monitoring
the market interest rate movements so that the Group can
react accordingly when there are adverse interest rate
movements.

1 1 ()
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued)

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s and the Company’s net borrowings at the
reporting date. For this purpose the Group defines “net
borrowings” as being interest-bearing financial liabilities
less interest-bearing investments (excluding cash held for
short-term working capital purposes):

2009 2008
BRAE fREE ERME FREE
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest rate amount interest rate amount
E EETFT E BETFT
% HK$'000 % HKS'000
F&E The Group
STENF & Variable rate
BERITER HKD bank borrowings 1.9 53,946 2.8 143,536
ARBHRITER RMB bank borrowings 6.4 169,315 - -
223,261 143,536
AT The Company
R p B Variable rate
BERITER HKD bank borrowings 1.9 53,946 2.8 143,536

72009412 8310 » tAF| =L L5 7
THH100EES - MATE LS4+
N T AEB R AR R 2B R
FIRRE & A, 18 %) & k9
B (20084 : 4978 ¥ 1628 L) °

At 31st December 2009, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would decrease/increase
the Group’s and the Company’s profit after taxation and
retained profits by approximately HK$0.98 million (2008:
approximately HK$1.62 million).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the changes in interest rate had occurred
and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for financial instruments held by the Group and the
Company at the reporting date. The 100 basis point
increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next reporting date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008.

(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that a
customer or counterparty will be unable to or unwilling
to fulfill its repayment obligations for amounts due to the
Group.The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
insurance related receivables and other receivables.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by screening
the counterparties, on-going monitoring and acquiring
collateral from counterparties.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into
account of any collateral held is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance.The Group or the Company does
not provide any guarantees which would expose the
Group or the Company to credit risk.

Insurance receivables are required to meet the Group's
established financial requirements and provide third party
guarantees to the Group when it considered necessary.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(¢) Credit risk (Continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from insurance receivables
are set out in Note 24.

As at 31st December 2009, bank balances were placed with
reputable financial institutions with diversification.

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter
difficulty in raising funds to meet its cash flow needs or
commitments. Liquidity risk may result from either inability
to sell financial assets quickly at their fair values, a counter-
party failing on repayment of a contractual obligation or
an insurance liability falling due for payment earlier than
expected.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash,
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturity value at the reporting date of the Group’s and
the Company’s financial liabilities which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the reporting date) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required
to pay:

e | 1 3
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of jointly controlled

financial institutions

The financial risks exposure and management objectives
and policies of the Group’s jointly controlled financial
institutions, XIB Group, are summarised as below:

(i) Overview

The activities of XIB Group expose it to a variety of financial
risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
(including currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk).
XIB Group continuously identifies, evaluates and monitors
these risks. XIB Group’s aim is to achieve an appropriate
balance between risk and return and minimise potential
adverse effects on its financial performance.

The Board of Directors of XIB Group (“XIB Board”) provides
strategy for overall risk management. Its senior
management establishes related risk management
policies and procedures under the strategy approved by
the XIB Board, including written policies covering specific
areas, such as currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments.Those risk management policies and
procedures are enforced by various departments after XIB
Board’s approval.In addition, the internal audit department
is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and control environment.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of jointly controlled

financial institutions (Continued)
(i) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may arise from
the failure of a customer or counterparty to meet its
contractual obligations or commitments to XIB Group.
Credit risk is one of the main risks that XIB Group faces in
its operations. Therefore, management of XIB Group
manages the exposure to credit risk carefully. Credit risk
of XIB Group arises principally from its activities relating
to loans and advances, investment portfolios, trade finance,
guarantees and payment acceptance.

XIB Group has established a multi-level organisation for
credit risk management.The Risk Management Committee
controls overall credit risk and is responsible for
coordinating with Risk Management Department, Risk
Evaluation Department and Legal Affairs and Compliance
Department to implement measures for credit risk
management.The Approval Officers of XIB Group approve
the loans and investments within their authorisation limits
and such approval is confirmed by the Chief Approval
Officer. Loan and investment proposals that exceed the
authorisation limits of Approval Officers are submitted to
the President’s Office or the Board of Executive Directors
of XIB Group for approval after Credit Committee’s review.
XIB Group has also established Risk Control Departments
in its branches to implement credit risk management
under its own jurisdiction.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of jointly controlled

financial institutions (Continued)
(ii)  Credit risk (Continued)

The credit approval policies and procedures of XIB Group
are standardised. Risk Management Department together
with other relevant departments reviews and updates the
credit policies and procedures periodically. Credit rating,
credit measurement, economic capital, various post-
lending management, indicator control, collective
assessment, risk warning and risk reporting are measures
for managing credit risks.

(iii)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that XIB Group is unable to obtain
funds at a reasonable cost when required to meet a
repayment obligation and fund its assets portfolio. The
liquidity management objective of XIB Group is to ensure
the availability of adequate funding to meet its needs to
fund deposit withdrawals and other liabilities as they fall
due, as well as being able to meet its obligations to fund
loan originations and commitments and to take advantage
of new investment opportunities.

The Assets and Liabilities Committee of XIB Group
establishes the strategy and policy of liquidity
management. The Financial Controller of XIB Group is
responsible for daily liquidity management, monitoring
and analysing the liquidity ratio continuously.

XIB Group has set up a series of liquidity indices to assess
and monitor its liquidity risk. A daily, monthly and quarterly
liquidity reporting system has been set up to ensure that
its Assets and Liabilities Committee, senior management
and Risk Management Committee can review the liquidity
condition on a timely basis.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of jointly controlled

financial institutions (Continued)
(iv) Market risk

XIB Group is exposed to market risk that may cause losses
to it as a result of adverse movements in market prices.
Market risk arises from open positions in the trading book
and banking book in interest rate, exchange rate, equities
and commodities. The trading book consists of financial
instruments and commodities that are free of any
restrictive covenants on their tradability and held with
trading intent, and in order to or for the purpose of
hedging market risk of the trading book.The banking book
consists of financial instruments not included in the
trading book (including those financial instruments
purchased with surplus funds and managed in the
investment book).

The XIB Board, the Risk Management Committee under XIB
Board and the senior management of XIB Group approve
the overall market risk policies and procedures. XIB Group
has established a market risk management team to
monitor its market risk exposure and report the risk
exposures and interest rate sensitivity to senior
management on a regular basis. The senior management
of XIB Group approves the limits over the foreign currency
exposures and the limits for the trading book in
accordance with market risk management policies
established by XIB Board.

XIB Group has established a structural system of limit
controls including regulatory limits, position limits and risk
limits to identify, monitor and control market risk. XIB
Group performs sensitivity analysis to assess the interest
rate risk and exchange rate risk of its trading book and
banking book.The sensitivity analysis provides guidance
to the adjustment of re-pricing and maturity structure of
interest-bearing assets and liabilities. A reporting system
has been established by XIB Group to report the result of
the sensitivity analysis to the Risk Management Committee
for review regularly.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of jointly controlled

financial institutions (Continued)
(iv) Market risk (Continued)
—  Currency risk

XIB Group conducts the majority of its business in RMB,
with other transactions denominated in foreign currencies,
therefore XIB Group is exposed to the fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial
position and cash flows. XIB Group manages its exposures
to currency exchange risk through management of its net
foreign currency position.

— Interest rate risk

Banking book interest rate risk is the risk that the banking
book assets, revenue and economic value would suffer
losses or have the risk of contingent losses due to
fluctuations of interest rates and changes of interest
structure. The re-pricing risk, the primary and most
common interest rate risk, arises from the difference
between maturity terms (for fixed interest rates) or
between the re-pricing terms (for floating interest rates)
of XIB Group’s assets, liabilities and off balance sheet
commitments. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that
the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of jointly controlled

financial institutions (Continued)
(iv) Market risk (Continued)
— Interest rate risk (Continued)

XIB Group mainly manages its exposures to the interest
rate risk arising from fluctuations in the prevailing market
interest rates on re-pricing, fair value and cash flows. XIB
Group’s business in Mainland China operates under the
interest rate scheme regulated by the People’s Bank of
China. Based on experience, it is normal practice for the
interest rates of both interest-bearing assets and liabilities
to move in the same direction (but the extent of changes
is not necessarily the same). XIB Group controls its interest
rate risk primarily through controlling the distribution of
the maturity date or re-pricing date of loans and deposits
and the asset-liability re-pricing gap.

(v)  Capital management

XIB Group’s objectives when managing capital are: (i) to
comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators
of the markets where the entities within XIB Group operate;
(ii) to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity holders
and benefits for other stakeholders; and (iii) to maintain a
strong capital base to support the development of its
business.

Capital adequacy and regulatory capital are monitored by
XIB Group’s management, employing techniques based on
the guidelines developed by the China Banking Regulatory
Commission (“CBRC”), for supervisory purposes. The
required information is filed with the CBRC on a quarterly
basis.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management

The Group'’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for equity holders of
the Company and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total debts divided by total net assets. For
this purpose the Group defines total debts as total
borrowings and advances as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Total net assets comprise
all components of equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

During 2009, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2008, was to maintain the gearing ratio within 25%.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity
holders of the Company, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at 31 December 2009 and
2008 were as follows:

2009 2008

EETIT BT T

HKS’000 HKS'000

BEFRF B Total borrowings and advances 223,261 143,536
BEFEERE Total net assets 2,548,030 2,248,182
BEXBEE Gearing ratio 8.8% 6.4%
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The increase in the gearing ratio resulted primarily from
the net increase in bank loans outstanding at 31 December
2009 due to the drawdown of new bank loan of RMB150
million and the repayment of bank loans of HK$90 million
during the year (Note 31).

Pursuant to the capital requirements imposed by the
Office of the Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong, a
subsidiary of the Company, Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited (“MXIC"), should maintain at least HK$20 million
in its adjusted net assets calculated according to the
requirements set out in the Insurance Ordinance. In order
to fulfill these requirements, MXIC may adjust the dividend
paid to the Company or issue new shares to the Company.
If MXIC cannot maintain the capital requirements imposed,
the Commissioner of Insurance may place restrictions on
the operations of MXIC.

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

The Group has adopted the amendments to HKFRS 7
“Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments”
which is effective for the financial year beginning on 1st
January 2009.The amendments require the disclosure of
fair value measurement using the following hierarchy of
methods:

— Level 1:fair values measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial
instruments

—  Level 2:fair values measured using quoted prices in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
market data
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

— Level 3: fair values measured using valuation
techniques in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data

The table below analyses the financial instruments of the

Group and the Company carried at fair value, by valuation
method, at the reporting date:

T&EE AATF
Group Company
BT EBETFIT
HK$’000 HK$’000

F—ER Level 1
HEESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 656,640 656,640
REEEN ETMRER S Listed equity securities held for trading 2,605 113
659,245 656,753

WEEMSEENCRTE (WRHEES
RAHHERS) A TFEREZHRE W
MSREHE - AEERARBFEHN
TREERANTERE/EFNEA

REBRARRFEZE A FEIIRNA
BRI ARRRE-FRIETER
FE- - FAZRIAEWRENRAFES
BMOE—FRRE_EREES -

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as held for trading and available-for-sale
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date.The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group and the Company is the current
bid price.

All the financial instruments carried at fair value held by
the Group and the Company were measured using Level
1 of the fair value hierarchy. During the year there was no
transfer of financial instruments between Level 1 and Level
2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial instruments carried at other than

fair value

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are assumed to approximate
their fair value. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate
that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

In the Directors’ opinion, the fair values of financial assets
and financial liabilities of the Group approximate their
carrying values at the reporting date.
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5 EERBEEWER

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL

INFORMATION
RERNARNEZERIBALRT : The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised during the year is as follows:
2009 2008
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS’000
BEEH Turnover
FEHREUWA Gross insurance premiums 75,208 60,892
R LAS WA Insurance brokerage commission 517 876
KEYERS KA Rental income from investment properties 6,806 6,421
AHEESREERSE Dividend income from available-
g A for-sale financial assets 8,174 24,476
ERE Management fees 120 120
90,825 92,785
RmEIREZH) Movement in unearned insurance
premiums (2,803) (7,545)
BRES>HEBRREA Reinsurance premiums ceded and
AR MmEBREES reinsurers’ share of movement in
unearned insurance premiums (9,587) (7,745)
H A Other revenues
R1T17 3H) B A Interest income from bank deposits 1,533 5,837
FEEE/ LA Dividend income from listed equity
BHREWA securities held for trading 103 91
Ht Others 337 1,745
1,973 7,673
e N\ 4828 Total revenues 80,408 85,168
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

In prior years, the Group had determined the segment
information on the basis of business segment, which are
distinguishable business divisions of the Group that
provide products and services to customers or dealing
with the market that are different to those of other
business segments (e.g. financial services, property
development and investment, investment holding and
others, industrial instrument manufacturing and toll road
investment). Business segment information is presented
as the primary reporting format while geographical
segment information, which is grouped by the location of
the principal operations and investees as the secondary
reporting format (e.g. Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macao).

However, information reported to the chief operating
decision maker which includes the Executive Board
Committee and Chief Executive, is determined on the basis
of business entities, investments held and investees. For
business entities and investments held, operating
performance evaluation and resource allocation are based
on individual business activities operated and investments
held by the Group. For investees, operating performance
evaluation is based on the individual investee of the Group.

On first-time adoption of HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
and in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of making
strategic decisions, resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has identified the following
reportable segments.
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5 BEEESEER () 5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

— HRITERE - BEARERE36.75% — Banking Investment: this segment includes the
e EFIBERIRITERR - AR Group’s 36.75% interest in the XIB Group which
A ROR P S IRITET o conducts banking business in Mainland China and

Macao.

— Rk BERNEEREERRFH — Insurance:this segment includes the Group’s general
—MRBES KRB RRLLR insurance business in Hong Kong and Macao and
E3 insurance brokerage business in Hong Kong.

— PEEZEREERE  BEARFEAM —  Property Development and Investment:this segment
BREHEETMEAREEEE includes the development and sale of residential
B o properties and leasing of high quality office space

in Mainland China.

— KBRKRE  NEERELEKREN —  Strategic Investment: this segment represents the
A& 15 B PR A B1H7,2008 AR ARR #0315 Group's investment in 72 million A-Share in Huaneng
& o Power International, Inc..

— Efh: BELEEEBTERAME —  Others: this segment includes results of operations
HoEB (X ERFEAME T EE not directly identified under other reportable
REERKEQEEE) RBE segments (mainly industrial instrument
BIETHEERAE o RERMZERR] manufacturing and toll road investment in Mainland
RSB ER - Et AR IR China) and head office activities. Head office is also
BWA—EDEB - considered to be a segment as discrete financial

information is available for the head office activities.

(a) ¥ - BEMAAMRE (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

EFEIBERBERDES FHAEIR For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
o AEBEFEEEREARTINEE allocating resources between segments, the Group’s chief
EREEWMOTNESE  BEMAE: operating decision maker monitors the results, assets and

liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Revenues derived from customers, products and services
directly identifiable with individual segment are reported
directly under respective segments. All direct costs
incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’
costs related to head office activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to other segments, products and
services are grouped under head office. Transactions
between segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-
segment income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation. The measure used for reporting segment
profit is “profit for the year’ i.e. profit after taxation of the
business entities, net income generated from investments
held and share of results of investees.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets held by the business entities, net book value
of investments held and share of net assets of and loans
to investees. Segment liabilities include insurance
liabilities, creditors and accruals, income tax payable and
deferred tax liabilities attributable to individual segments
and bank borrowings managed directly by the segments
or directly related to those segments. Dividend payable
to equity holders of the Company is treated as unallocated
liabilities in reporting segment assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 HAtlaE — FH

6 OTHER GAINS — NET

2009 2008
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
EAFEERBRERYIERN Fair value gains/(losses) on listed equity
iR ERE S A FE securities measured at fair value through
Wz, (E518) profit or loss 768 (2,070)
REMHEEH AT EKR Fair value gains on revaluation of
G220 investment properties (Note 16) 11,253 3,201
HEREYE W= Gain on disposal of investment properties — 1,725
b H W 58 Net exchange gains 28 2,386
12,049 5,242

7 DREBEEHE A WEER AL 7

NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

&% H AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS
2009 2008
EBETFT BT
HK$’000 HKS’000
IREEFEANEEEFE (@) Netinsurance claims incurred on

insurance business (a) 26,244 17,572

REBEBEENHLER () Commission expenses incurred on
insurance business (b) 29,526 21,947
55,770 39,519
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7 RBEEREA W EEE A 7 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED
SEH (8) AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(a) PRBSERS A n B w3 (a) Net insurance claims incurred on insurance
business
2009
£H BRR B
Gross Reinsurance Net
BETTT BETTT BETTT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
REEHERBRAE Current year claims and loss
EH adjustment expenses 21,827 (502) 21,325
EFERENBLARE Additional cost/(run-off savings)
ERMBEINKE, for prior years' claims and
(EEFEEETEH) loss adjustment expenses 3,189 (576) 2,613
DA EKRZE®RN Increase in claims incurred
RIE® M but not reported 2,120 186 2,306
27,136 (892) 26,244
2008
B BRE FEE
Gross  Reinsurance Net
BET T BT BETFT
HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS'000
AEFRERBRAE Current year claims and loss
ZH adjustment expenses 15,384 (280) 15,104
EEERERBRAR Additional cost for prior years’ claims
EROBEINKA and loss adjustment expenses 2,536 248 2,784
BEREEREFHRE (Decrease)/increase in claims
CR ) /1 m incurred but not reported (2,310) 2,005 (305)
Ko iR B 2 TR ET RS (E Decrease in the expected cost of
BASR claims for unexpired risks (11) — an
15,599 1,973 17,572
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7 DREBEERE AR 7
EHH )

NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED
AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(b) TREEEBELNHEESEN

(b) Commission expenses incurred on insurance

business
2009 2008
BETFT BT T
HKS’000 HK$’000
BN kENAEERE Gross commissions paid and payable 30,582 22,737
B B R ERE Less: Commissions received and
IR A€ receivable from reinsurers (1,056) (790)
ReBRFE Net commission expenses 29,526 21,947
8 ‘BmEEH 8 OPERATING LOSS
2009 2008
BETFT BT T
HKS’000 HK$’000
EEEBERE AL Operating loss is stated after crediting
IR and charging the following:
PN Crediting
B W e 5 /R Net exchange gains 28 2,386
TEYEB WK EWT S ©  Rentals received and receivable from
MBREEER investment properties less direct
outgoings 5,832 5,554
0B Charging
e K g Depreciation and amortisation 1,878 6,356
HEMEE - S R E Loss on disposal of property, plant
E1E and equipment 76 23
AHHEESREERE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
B8 (FERE21(b) X (c)) financial assets (Note 21(b) and (c)) 28 325
BiE s SXHEHEE Operating lease rentals in respect of land
and buildings 1,144 1,223
ZE R BN Auditor’s remuneration 2,564 3,034
— BFEE — provision for current year 2,228 2,561
— EFEE LI EE — under provision for prior years — 137
— PHIEETE — interim attestation work 336 336
EEE (FE37(0) Management fee (Note 37(c)) 1,880 1,880
RRE FIAK 7N (a) Retirement benefit costs (a) 705 728
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8

BREH B

(a)

#£2000F11 A308 A © A& R —
HATE SR E ([RE®”KETE))
BN FTEEERZBBEERET
2 RINFHEIZEERAEE Y
BESRER BBYBEESR
& - HZ2000F11 8308 RAEMH
FTEIRRIEE AR A ESTE
BRI SE HIME A TEE 512 (58
BeErEl)) MRREBRLE - A5E
K& B ¥ 7 F G &) 2 R EE A
BEERAF 2 ED 2 THE -

REBETAMBESHE 2 HKE
et kB REEEXAFES
21 (200059 A30B & IMAHEES
ZERERAREEXRAHFES Z
NEEESABKANESZH
MR EEREFE UEaHEE
#2,0007L AR) - EEEDMBEEZH
MR 25 AT BE F IR ARG T BIFT 02 MR
Z AR SREE R AR R D AN R B A R
ERKET B RBESFTE 2 HK -
20094 % 2008F 12 A31H I &
FRERREA 2R WK -

SRBERNEEMS - AREIR
B REES B A & A & X 15
B2 00E H T B B 8 R IKEH
g AEERERFHFESZBNLRA
HEFEERE A MK - mEHH
B MREAEREEREREN
BARBNEE -

8

OPERATING LOSS (Continued)

(a)

The Group contributed to a defined contribution
scheme (“DC Scheme”) which was available to all
eligible Hong Kong employees prior to 30th
November 2000.The assets of the scheme were held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. Contributions to
the scheme by the Group and employees were
calculated at 15% of the employees’ basic salary until
30th November 2000 when the DC Scheme was
replaced by a mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) set up under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The Group’s monthly contributions (mandatory and
voluntary) to the MPF Scheme for each employee are
calculated at the higher of 10% (or 6% for employees
who joined after 30th September 2000) of the
monthly basic salary and 5% of the monthly total
income, subject to a maximum contributions of
HK$2,000. The Group’s contributions to the DC
Scheme and MPF Scheme can be reduced by the
Group’s voluntary contributions forfeited in relation
to those employees who leave the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. At 31st December
2009 and 2008, there were no material unutilised
forfeited contributions.

For Mainland China employees, the Group
participates in the employee pension schemes
administered by the respective municipal
government in various locations in Mainland China
where the Group operates. The Group makes
monthly contributions calculated at a percentage of
the monthly payroll costs to these schemes and the
respective municipal government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of the
employees of the Group.
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9 REERAK 9 FINANCE COSTS

2009 2008
BET T BT T
HKS’000 HKS’000
WITEZF B GEE31) Interest on bank loans (Note 31) 8,033 7,460
A B A (a) Interest income (a) (1,225) —
6,808 7,460

B BMEAHTEERE Less: Amounts capitalised in properties

Y H) RIB under development for sale
(F71%22) (Note 22) (4,331) —
2,477 7,460
(@) FHESBATFICREREEERE (@) Theamount represented interest income from short-
RERITERMEERFI WA - term bank deposits placed for unutilised specific
borrowings.
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10 BFEITHAEME R LA R 10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS

P < =z AlE ) A\ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) EHFMWE (a) Directors’ emoluments
HE EE
R E i 2ES -
REMFH
Salaries,
EE#L  housing, other 2009
Directors’ allowances and pOkE]
fees benefits in kind Total
BEFT EBEFT EBEFT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HITES Executive Directors
SERLE (ERE) Mr. Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman)’ 42 — 42
TeRtsGEER) Mr. Wang Hui Jin (Vice Chairman) 60 — 60
THERE Mr. Ding Shi Da 88 - 88
REmELE Mr. Zhu Xue Lun 60 — 60
SERFLE Mr. Weng Jian Yu 100 1,046 1,146
FHERL Mr. Li Jin Hua' 53 354 407
BREER 42 Mr. Chen Gui Zong? 18 - 18
FHTES Non-executive Director
BR& 42 Mr. Chen Le? 18 — 18
BUFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
ZRRALE Mr. Ip Kai Ming 230 — 230
LEMEEE Mr. Sze Robert Tsai To 300 = 300
BEMEE Mr. So Hop Shing 230 - 230
1,199 1,400 2,599
g R2009F4F 238 LZEAES 0 Appointed as Director on 23rd April 2009
2 R2009F4H 23R BITES 2 Resigned as Director on 23rd April 2009
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10 BTGB ABEMNE KA EE 10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS

T 4 2 AiE sl N (48) AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)
(a) FHEFME (H) (a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
HrE- - FE
R E Al
RE Y@=
Salaries,
EZME  housing, other 2008
Directors’  allowances and ke
fees benefits in kind Total
BT BT T BB T
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
HITESE Executive Directors
THELEE(ERE) Mr. Ding Shi Da (Chairman) 100 = 100
BRERLE BIERE) Mr. Chen Gui Zong (Vice Chairman) 60 — 60
REMRAAE Mr. Zhu Xue Lun 60 — 60
FeRrs Mr. Wang Hui Jin 60 — 60
SEFEE Mr. Weng Jian Yu 100 1,039 1,139
ERTEZF Non-executive Director
BRE LA Mr. Chen Le 60 = 60
BUFWTES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERBALE Mr. Ip Kai Ming 230 = 230
LEmEE Mr. Sze Robert Tsai To 300 — 300
BAKEE Mr. So Hop Shing 230 = 230
1,200 1,039 2,239
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10 BT AEMNE R IR 10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS

P <2 =2 A8 N () AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(b) 145 e ve I 4 =2 A8 BN L (b) Five highest paid individuals

EiiiF @z oL ARG AEZESAIINTHE The analysis in note (a) above does not include those

e fAEBAERsMe 2 @RIA individuals who are not directors but whose emoluments

T ENTFHREALTZHMEFBEOT : are among the five highest in the Group. Details of the

emoluments paid to those individuals are as follows:

2009 2008
EB¥ T T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
e FEREMZE Salaries, housing and other allowances,
gk REWH = and benefits in kind 3,724 3,890
RIRE R EHEIHE TR Contributions to retirement benefit
scheme 24 _
B4 Bonus 4,920 5,550
8,668 9,440
il & & E Emoluments Band 2009 2008
A& AZ
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
76 #£1,000,0017T — HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
75 #1,500,0007T 2 —
751,500,001 — HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
75 #£2,000,0007T 1 5
76 #£2,000,0017T — HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
75 % 2,500,0007T 2 —
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11 BBtz 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
BB NS T T91% R F N 5T e SR 1% A Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
KT % 16.5% (20084 : 16.5%) e s & 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
1 o PEIRH RORFIR R 2 Bk Bl R the year. Taxation on Mainland China and Macao profits
F TR MK A B A3 5 R P has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for
ZBRTBEGHE - the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in Mainland

China and Macao.

FEHREERAXIEZHBELOT - The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:

2009 2008
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
EHBiIE Current tax
BEBNEMH Hong Kong profits tax 344 257
RPITE I8 Macao taxation 226 8
570 265
TEREEBERS Over provision in prior years
SBPIREIE Macao taxation (8) (10)
FEIERTE (F7EFE32) Deferred tax (Note 32)
EREZENEER Relating to the origination and reversal
[ of temporary differences 3,384 294
EHETH Resulting from a decrease in tax rate = 11
3,384 305
Fr{5 37 Income tax expense 3,946 560
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11 s iy () 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
A& BB R AR A 2 B I8 L R A B The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs
RBEABZBEMABEZERDVIBELER from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
m taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows:
2009 2008
BT T BEFT
HKS’000 HKS’000
BR 2% AT 2 A Profit before taxation 176,834 164,487
LR FE16.5% 58 2 Bi1E Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% 29,178 27,140
B A b [ S R A5 2R 2 Effect of different taxation rates in other
A tax jurisdictions 1,726 (216)
RERZBETHLE ) Effect on opening deferred tax balances
BEFIRE SR 2 E resulting from a decrease in tax rate
during the year — 11
AR 2 WA Income not subject to taxation (33,069) (35,114)
Ik -y Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes 1,431 2,237
s 2 B8 K AT IR Increase in recognised tax losses and
Ry = AN deductible temporary differences (124) —
REERTE K& AT 4R Increase in unrecognised tax losses and
i = R0 deductible temporary differences 4,816 6,621
ATEARER 2 THIEEE 2 Utilisation of tax losses previously
Ciigil not recognised (38) (22)
FFEEEEFEBS Over provision in prior years (8) (10)
Hity Others 34 (87)
T8 2 Income tax expense 3,946 560
12 A2\ w)HE 25 75 A N R A 16 A1) 12 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
RAmERFEE ARIGES RN EBEE The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
T AR R BB R A5 A B 421 the Company includes a profit of HK$4.21 million (2008:
BT (20085 : #2418 7T) ° HK$24.11 million) which has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company.
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13 BE 13 DIVIDEND
2009 2008
BET T M F T
HKS’000 HKS’000
R E2HB &R RARES Final dividend proposed after the
AR 38 AR 311 reporting date of 3 HK cents
(20084 : & ¥ 311)) (2008: 3 HK cents) per ordinary share 13,783 13,783
E2WwBAENEIRR SN ER AL E B The dividend proposed after the reporting date has not
BWMEFIEAE - HERBIE20105F been recognised as a liability in these consolidated
12A31 B IEFEIERE &R S o financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ending 31st
December 2010.

14 BB EA 14 EARNINGS PER SHARE
BRERZFZBIEARA BB E20095F The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
12A31 8 IEFE#EERE AR RN profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
#17,288.8% 7T (20084 : #%16,392.7 the year ended 31st December 2009 of HK$172,888,000
B7t) REABBITRMD 2 NEFHE (2008: HK$163,927,000) and the weighted average of
459,428,656 (20084F : 459,428,656) ML &t 459,428,656 (2008:459,428,656) ordinary shares in issue
g o during the year.
REBAFERBEIFEYEDEITA The Group has no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
BN TRk BEREEFEN during the current and prior years and therefore diluted
BRESRNEGREARNZFNER - earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share

for the years presented.
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15 o3k ~ BRAS B sk th

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a) A4EH (a) The Group
&l K&
?Jﬁ?ﬁ&
BRRE
e Furniture, Q
BR#EF fixtures, office RE
Building held  and computer Motor k]
for own use equipment vehicles Total
BB BB BB BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
720081 H1H At st January 2008
A Cost 9,280 8,734 3,110 21,124
EAMERRERE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (6,158) (6,392) (1,004) (13,554)
BREFE Net book value 3,122 2,342 2,106 7,570
#Z2008F Year ended
12A31BIEFE 31st December 2008
EH@EEE%‘TE Opening net book value 3,122 2,342 2,106 7,570
[ 5 % Translation differences - 13 59 72
A Additions — 341 — 341
REEHE Charge for the year (332) (509) (460) (1,301)
e Disposals = (23) = 23)
HRREFE Closing net book value 2,790 2,164 1,705 6,659
12008512A318B% At 31st December 2008 and
12009%1A1H 1st January 2009
A Cost 9,280 8,988 3,180 21,448
EHMERRERSE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (6,490) (6,824) (1,475) (14,789)
BREFE Net book value 2,790 2,164 1,705 6,659
B ZE 20095 Year ended
12A31BLEE 31st December 2009
ROERRHE Opening net book value 2,790 2,164 1,705 6,659
[ 28 Translation differences - 1 3 4
R . Additions — 322 — 322
AEEHE Charge for the year (309) (447) (417) (1,173)
CANESEEEMREED  Fairvalue gains credited to leasehold
ZRTERE () buildings revaluation reserve (i) 51 - - 51
ENNBAREME ()  Reclassify as investment properties (i) (216) = = (216)
& Disposals - (100) - (100)
HRREFE Closing net book value 2,316 1,940 1,291 5,547
20095 12A318 At 31st December 2009
A (ot 9,003 9,010 3,185 21,198
ZFAMELRERE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (6,687) (7,070) (1,894) (15,651)
REFE Net book value 2,316 1,940 1,291 5,547
(i) EFRSESFASUNPTEAMBN— (i)  The amount represents the fair value gain recognised for
BEETVESH OB RIREY XL a residential flat located in Mainland China upon
RO FERES - ZMERAEFE reclassification to investment properties during the year.
HAKEGER - WIERAHER R That premise was occupied by the Group in prior years and
EXREBEIIK - ZMERNFAL measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
g - AEEREH D BRI HEFIZ impairment losses. The building was fair valued by the
DA AR - AR L E AR Group before reclassification when the premise was rented
BEAFERFE o out during the year, however, the land use right was not

fair valued.
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15 M€ - Bhas Mo ()

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
(b) AAH (b) The Company
R R
HERR
e ET
BiE Furniture,
HREF fixtures, office RE
Building held  and computer Motor k]
for own use equipment vehicles Total
BRFT BRFT EBFT EBFT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
R2008F1A18 At st January 2008
AR Cost 1,185 2,903 2,000 6,088
ZAMERRBERSR Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (447) (2,009) (869) (3,325
BREHE Net book value 738 894 1,131 2,763
HZ2008F Year ended
12A318LLFE 31st December 2008
BYREFE Opening net book value 738 894 1,131 2,763
BN Additions — 125 — 125
KEEHE Charge for the year (65) (153) (226) (444)
HE Disposals — (20) — (20)
HRREFE Closing net book value 673 846 905 2,424
1£2008F12A318 & At 31st December 2008 and
(2009F1A1H 1st January 2009
AR Cost 1,185 2,929 2,000 6,114
ZAMERRBEER Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (512) (2,083) (1,095) (3,690)
FEFE Net book value 673 846 905 2,424
HZ20095 Year ended
12A318LEE 315t December 2009
BYREFE Opening net book value 673 846 905 2,424
BN Additions - 128 - 128
KEEHE Charge for the year (52) (134) (181) (367)
HE Disposals — (36) = (36)
HARREFE Closing net book value 621 804 724 2,149
12009512A31H At 31st December 2009
A Cost 1,185 2,877 2,000 6,062
ZANERAEESE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (564) (2,073) (1,276) (3,913)
FREFE Net book value 621 804 724 2,149
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16 HEWH 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
rE PN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BETT| BT | BEFx| BT
HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
~NEE At fair value
R1A1H At 1st January 86,713 90,512 38,713 38,012
BYIR - #aE R Reclassify from property,
REMEEL plant and equipment and
3 % + b {5 A leasehold land and
EEH DA land use rights
(FER15()() (Note 15(a)(i)) 315 — — —
N EYNR Fair value gain 11,253 3,201 6,237 701
HeE Disposal = (7,000) = —
98,281 86,713 44,950 38,713
REBERARARIKRE Y ERERREF The analysis of the Group’s and the Company’s interests in
BEOmT : investment properties at their net book value is as follows:
xE AAFE
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT | BT | BT | BFEFT
HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
ERERANRLD Leases held in Hong Kong
504 A Over 50 years 19,000 16,000 — —
106 504 Between 10 and 50 years 33,500 32,000 — —

TEBRBLNIMNTBTL  Leases held outside Hong Kong

504 A E Over 50 years 831 — — —
106E =504 Between 10 and 50 years 44,950 38,713 44,950 38,713
98,281 86,713 44,950 38,713

REMERBIBEMER - F—KF The investment properties were revalued based on their
BT ihE R FERERE AR A R REE fair values as at 31st December 2009 by independent
HrEENLEMAR AT - %2009 12 professional valuers, namely Savills Valuation and
AVAM A FEREESH - Professional Services Limited and Vigers Appraisal &

Consulting Limited.
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17

BEWE (B

—XMBRAIREBFERATEERK
5,250 7T (20084 : &% 4,800% 7T) &Y
ETREMENERZAOBEBREZE
EEETE  UWRHAEEHENEHR
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iE °
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AREE MARRQBIREE £ i & £+ HiFE
R ATER E AT o 120095
12ANBEMEEFESTOT :
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The title deeds in respect of certain investment properties
in Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$52.5 million (2008:
HK$48 million) held by a subsidiary are placed in the
custody of the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance in
Hong Kong pursuant to the relevant regulatory
requirements.

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE
RIGHTS

The Group’s and the Company’s interests in leasehold land
and land use rights represent prepaid operating lease
payments. Their net book value as at 31st December 2009
are analysed below:

K& KAFE
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT | BEFor | BY%Fx| EETT
HKS$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
HAYBRE SHE Opening net book value 346,188 331,383 2,813 2,820
PE 5 =R Translation differences 1,271 19,860 — —
ENDEARIEMHE  Reclassify as investment
(GEE15@)()) properties (Note 15(a)(i)) (99) = — —
5 Amortisation
—FFAB®EK — charged to income
statement (705) (5,055) (20) (7)
—EBEXRAHEE — capitalised in properties
EERPWE under development
(1 #22) for sale (Note 22) (4,428) — — —
HIRBRE FHE Closing net book value 342,227 346,188 2,793 2,813
o BIATRENEE Less: Amounts included in
RN SR current assets (324,882)| (328,440) — —
SIAERBN & EE Amounts included in
FRA®RE non-current assets 17,345 17,748 2,793 2,813




— ==

B 25 s e R

LE R Annual Report 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17

FHLE b Je 1 M4 T (48

ME 30 & 4 s R RREDFE D T

RIGHTS (Continued)

17 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE

The net book value of leasehold land and land use rights

R is analysed as follows:
KEE PN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BEFT| BT | BEFR| EETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 | HK$’000 HK$'000
EREERANRLD Leases held in Hong Kong
504 LA £ Over 50 years 4,512 4,533 2,150 2,152
10F £ 504F Between 10 and 50 years 11,994 12,253 — —
FEBEBLIMNTETL  Leases held outside Hong Kong
50F JA _E Over 50 years 325,078 328,741 — —
105 E505F Between 10 and 50 years 643 661 643 661
342,227 346,188 2,793 2,813

AEEHEE £ K+ (FE BENKA S
75 % 335,383,867 T (20084 : &
335,383,8677T) °

The cost of the leasehold land and land use rights of the
Group was HK$335,383,867 (2008: HK$335,383,867).
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18 Fi)E 2w 18 SUBSIDIARIES
AATF
Company
2009 2008
BT T BEEFT
HK$’000 HKS’000
JEETIRD - A Unlisted shares, at cost 58,605 58,605
ERTHERAR B Loans to subsidiaries, interest bearing 279,700 279,700
ERTHERT @ 28 Loans to subsidiaries, interest free 34,855 37,169
MBARRIXK &8 Amounts due from subsidiaries, interest free 209,269 207,854
523,824 524,723
582,429 583,328
B OBEEE Less: Impairment losses (101,590) (96,317)
480,839 487,011
LTHBRRMERRE R EER The loans to and amounts due from subsidiaries are
REARRRTZEAANERER - 45 T unsecured and are not repayable within the next twelve
BLARIMABEERIRB THERFEM months. The interest bearing loans to subsidiaries are
AEZE - BEBRITAEFEMALSEDK charged at a spread over Hong Kong Dollar prime rate, at
INFEFE10ENEENEEGTE - a spread over Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or at fixed
rates of 10% per annum.
A THEERBIER2009F 12831 HE AR The following list contains the particulars of those
SENEE  EEXBEBEATER subsidiaries at 31st December 2009 which principally
MEBATF - BREAHBAIN - FIFEZK affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
NEEREK - class of shares held is ordinary shares unless otherwise

stated.
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18 MEATR (5 18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

E#fT
d R kAR N 1]
G2 RAHE Pk
Place of Particulars Group’s TREH
incorporation  of issued and equity Principal
AT &R Name of company and operations  paid up capital interest activities
EERT Directly held
ZERRBRAA Dorfine Development Limited FE MRERAEBIT 100% ESE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HKS1 each investment
RERGREEM Fujian Minxin Investment Consultants 1% A K 470 FMRA 100 REBRRSE
BRARME Co, Ltd. M@ 3008 T
The People’s Registered capital Investment
Republic of China HK$3,000,000 consulting services
BiEHEREFRAF Min Xin (China) Investment Limited RERIHE \RERER 100% REER
British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
BiEERERAR Min Xin Infrastructure Limited RERZEE 1RERIERL 100% RERR
British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
BERBREBR AR Min Xin Insurance Company Limited B8 5,5002 % 100% A7
BREBIT ~REREH
Hong Kong 55,000,000 shares Writing of general
of HKS1 each insurance business
KERBRELBRAT Ranger Insurance Brokers Limited & 60E iR 100% R
BRAEBIT
Hong Kong 600,000 shares [nsurance
of HKS1 each brokerage services
AEERAT Take Chance Company Limited B REREBIT 100% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HK$1 each investment
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(1) FRERBICESFTMEBHERZ
NE] c EIEL AR ZEERELNIER
SETEHEE20.1% * LR FF AL
BESKBIIREFHERA -

2 HEAMZZIELE

18 Fif B 4~ wl () 18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
BET
& RHE 3 5E
G2 RAHE Pk
Place of Particulars Group’s TREH
incorporation  of issued and equity Principal
AT EH Name of company and operations  paid up capital interest activities
EERF(E) Directly held (Continued)
Thousand Limited Thousand Limited HERIHE 1RERIER 100% REER
British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
RREERERATA Welljet Development Limited F REREBIT 100% ES
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HK$1 each investment
BERE Indirectly held
BEMEERAR Min Xin Properties Limited 0 5008 % 100% RERR
BRAEBIT
Hong Kong 5,000,000 shares Investment
of HKS1 each holding
BiE EN) EXER Minxin (Suzhou) Property EIN: P AR 100% MEERRES
BRARF Development Co,, Ltd. ? BEET
The People’s Registered capital Property
Republic of China  HK$200,000,000 development
and sale
Wide Exposure Developments  Wide Exposure Developments RERIHE 1RERIER 100% REER
Limited Limited British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding

(1)  Company not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.The net

assets of this company represent approximately 0.1% of

the Group’s consolidated totals and no turnover from

external customers was recorded by this company during

the year.

(2)  Wholly foreign-owned enterprises in Mainland China



T 2 1, £ £ 3] Annual Report 2009

B 75 e A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(@) AEERAKFRE

19 e [m] 45 ) B 45 19 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
& b NN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT | BT | B¥Fx| BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 | HK$’000 HK$'000
JEEMARID » EAKAR  Unlisted investments, at cost — — | 205,805 210,805
EiHEEFE Share of net assets 1,351,529 | 1,126,728 — =
B R EE R Less: Impairment losses = — (5) (5,005)
1,351,529 | 1,126,728 | 205,800 205,800
BT — HRE Loan to a jointly controlled
EE (D) entity (b) 16,334 16,334 — —
% & B 1E (a) Total investments (a) 1,367,863 | 1,143,062 205,800 205,800
JEETMRZMD  ¥ZAKAS  Unlisted investments, at cost 205,805 210,805

The Group’s investments in jointly controlled entities

R are analysed below:
BB RITRE Hith Fok ]
XIB Group Others Total
BT BEETFIT BEETFIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
72008F1 A1H At 1st January 2008 899,248 40,588 939,836
&5 =58 Translation difference 22,623 2,028 24,651
PG BT 18 5 4 A Share of net profit after taxation 164,662 5,943 170,605
WABMEESEIN,  Increase/(decrease) in investment
CR) revaluation reserve 8,380 (410) 7,970
72008F12H318 & At 31st December 2008 and
2009F181H 1st January 2009 1,094,913 48,149 1,143,062
b 5 =58 Translation difference 3,363 (94) 3,269
FEAEBRB 185 % F Share of net profit after taxation 178,099 7,774 185,873
IERER S Dividend paid - (9,200) (9,200)
KEEHRBESE M Increase in investment revaluation
reserve 44,473 386 44,859
?2009F12H31H At 31st December 2009 1,320,848 47,015 1,367,863
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B {s %@ % R 2 A Min Xin Holdings Limited

19 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)

(b) The loan is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed
repayment terms.

Bank deposits placed by the Group and the Company with
jointly controlled financial institutions in the normal
course of business are included in cash and bank balances
(Note 37(a)).

The following list contains the particulars of those jointly
controlled entities at 31st December 2009 which
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. All
of these entities are unlisted corporates.

300 BETR XREH
G2 HRRE Bk
Place of Particulars Group's TEEH
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
HERHERER Name of jointly controlled entities  and operations paid up capital interest activities
EERE Directly held
EFERRT Xiamen International Bank, hE AR LAE FHEA 36.75% HRITRBEER
REMBAF and its subsidiaries AR¥6ET
RiB#434603348 T
The People’s Registered capital Banking and
Republic of China  RMB600,000,000 and investment holding
HK$434,603,340
BRREBBNAT Fortune Right Investment Limited 0 WERAL T 36.75% S
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HK$1 each investment
RPIERR 31T Luso International Banking Limited A 308 ARK 36.75% #IT
1565 B Bk
RP9%1,0007
Macao 300,000 Class A Banking
and 15,600 Class B
Shares of
MOP1,000 each
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19 b m] ) E e () 19 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(Continued)
30 BETR FEEH
Ly SRRE Atk
Place of Particulars Group's TEER
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
LEEHERER Name of jointly controlled entities  and operations paid up capital interest activities
EERE B Directly held (Continued)
ERREABRAR Setwide Investments Limited Bk WERAEL T 36.75% nERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HKS1 each investment
REEEERAA Silver Win Development Limited BE WEREL T 36.75% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HKS1 each investment
EFBIRREBRAR Xiamen International Investment 0 181 36.75% RERR
Limited BREBIT
Hong Kong 10,000 shares Investment
of HKS1 each holding
XIB Properties Limited XIB Properties Limited M B 18K 36.75% NERE
EEERZ
Liberia 100 shares Property
of no par value investment
EERE Indirectly held
BEEBREERAA D Min Faith Investments Limited ), & 16 40% RE R
KEFBAR and its subsidiaries gRE% T
Hong Kong 100 shares Investment
of HKS1 each holding
BMNEEBRELASR Fuzhou Charm Faith Autosystem AR £ FMEA 40% EERHE
BRARY Co, Ltd. " 121BET BFER
The People’s Registered capital Manufacturing
Republic of China USD1,210,000 and distribution of

digital instruments
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19 3t [w] ¥ ) B () 19 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(Continued)
Ef R BETR FEEH
Ly SRRE Atk
Place of Particulars Group's TREH
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
HERHER SR Name of jointly controlled entities  and operations paid up capital interest activities
BERE (8 Indirectly held (Continued)

BMERBBARE BMZERBBANK MEARLN HMER 40% HE
BRAR BRAR ARE4008 T ETEM
The People’s Registered capital Distribution of
Republic of China RMB4,000,000 electrical products
RMEBEB(LERER  Fuzhou Charm Faith Instruments R AR AEFE FMER 40% HERHE
ERARY Co, Ltd. ™ S0EET FFER
The People’s Registered capital Manufacturing
Republic of China USD500,000 and distribution of
digital instruments
BNERRERER Fuzhou Hi-Tech Instruments E AR A FHEA 0% HEHFEXR
NG Co, Ltd." ARH1,00387 RARRK
The People’s Registered capital Distribution of
Republic of China RMB10,030,000 digital instruments
and investment
holding
BEEEEBER Min Faith Instruments Limited ! 0 181K 204% RERR

BRARO gRAEBIT
Hong Kong 100 shares Investment
of HK$1 each holding
KEZEEERAMRADAY  Tianjin Charm Faith Instruments ~ FEARLME FHEA 17.5% HERHE
Co, Ltd. ™ EE FFER
The People’s Registered capital Manufacturing
Republic of China USD700,000 and distribution of
digital instruments
(1) ERBERKESHMEBLAEZZ (1)  Companies not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.The

AR BEHERARZEEFERR
HADG A B D R LG ANEELRE R
B8.21.2%M%4.4% °

aggregate net assets and profits before taxation
attributable to these companies represent approximately
1.2% and 4.4% respectively of the Group’s consolidated
totals.

154
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20 Wi 20 ASSOCIATES
RE PN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT | BT | BT | BE¥Fr
HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000
JEETMRRG - Unlisted investments,
2K 7K (a) at cost (a) — — 10,746 —
fE1hEEFE Share of net assets 25,422 12,719 — =
25,422 12,719 10,746 —
ERTHZL AT Loans to associates 19,313 24,122 = =
44,735 36,841 10,746 —
JE LMY » #AKZAS  Unlisted investments, at cost 10,749 4,453 10,746 —
(@) BERERNZENFANHAHELE (@) The investment in Fujian Hua Yuan was reclassified
PREEENDBEAHELNA G from available-for-sale financial assets to associates
F£21(c) ° during the year (Note 21(c)).
BTHBENTZEREAERAT - 28 The loans to associates are unsecured, interest free and
&ﬂ PR ESE K o have no fixed repayment terms.



= AL EE R Annual Report 2009

B 25 s e R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 WA TE ()

AR E R B 200912 831 H A
EEMELEREEABEATENHE A
Al WEBMERNREHHAEIELETA

20 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The following list contains the particulars of those
associates at 31st December 2009 which principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. All these

Al ° associates are unlisted corporates.
3003 BETR FEEH
G2 HRBRAZE NG
Place of Particulars Group's TREH
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
- NGEA Name of associates and operations paid up capital interest activities
EERT Directly held
RELERWERRRM  Fujian Hua Yuan City Construction R EAR £ FMERA 25% Ak RaR
BRARY Environment Protection Co., Ltd. @ ARE4267ETT R R
The People’s Registered capital Sewage and
Republic of China RMB42,670,000 waste treatment
services
BERE Indirectly held
EEBUBRAR Hong Kong Vigorous Limited, 0 181 30% RERRK
REFRBAF and its subsidiary gRE® T
Hong Kong 10,000 shares Investment
of HKS1 each holding
SBRURRALRER Maanshan Huan Tong Highway 2 AR £FE FMRA 21% @40 ER%M0
BRAT Development Limited ARB99458 T
The People’s Registered capital Infrastructure
Republic of China RMB99,450,000
(1) FEEREFKESTMESTEZZ (1)  Company not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The
ANEl e EBIEH AR ZEEFELRERT aggregate net assets and profit before taxation of this
AlE M AARE D B A RN B4R & 4258 company represent approximately 0.43% and 0.08%
Z2.0.43%)2.0.08% ° respectively of the Group’s consolidated totals.
(2 FEEEMNZHEH2000F1 AR @ A& (2)  The profit sharing arrangement commenced from January
E e (R A RlE B A E R24% - 2000 and the Group's share of the associate’s profit is 24%
BER AFR18% A TNFHAR21% ° for the first five years, 18% for the next five years and 21%
for the remaining years.
B) RERN - BEEBHERAA ([E4]) (3)  During the year, Hong Kong Vigorous Limited (“Vigorous”)

CEFF—HOirmtEEREHEA
AMERTZMBERARNLERE -
BN EL = 2009F 12 A31H IEFER
BB ARMEEKA G AiFE
HENIERBEE -

has entered into an agreement to dispose of this subsidiary
to its minority shareholder. The assets and liabilities of this
subsidiary has been accounted for as non-current assets
classified as held-for-sale by Vigorous for the year ended
31st December 2009.
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THMBEH RSB AEENEE A
AIRIRE & BRI T M ARG ET R A
P bl 2 BA TS 3R K

BEE

20 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

E AR 27 Min Xin Holdings Limited

The financial information of the Group’s associates
extracted from their financial statements prepared in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting

principles in their place of incorporation is as follows:

BaE BE BRE#= PN it F
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues Profit
BETFTT BETFTT BEFTT BT BEFIT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
20095 2009
gt Aggregated 410,461 (239,596) 170,865 22,483 31,182
AEBEBEGER Group’s attributable
interest 89,692 (51,483) 38,209 5,145 5,657
20084F 2008
FEES Aggregated 224,773 (56,214) 168,559 61,021 26,383
AEEREGER Group’s attributable
interest 47,923 (11,878) 36,045 13,107 6,153
al Ak B 4 il A A 21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS
RE PN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BEFT | BETT | BT | BT
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
NEE At fair value
MR1A1H At 1st January 576,576 1,140,870 576,576 1,140,870
BRELEDN Reclassified from
ERBEE non-current asset
EXF D) classified as
held-for-sale (b) — 11,099 — 10,070
ENoRA Reclassified to
iR l/NET (o) associates (c) (10,746) = (10,746) =
NI E B Fair value gain/(loss)
Rz A TE recognised in investment
Wz, (E5148) revaluation reserve 90,838 | (575,068) 90,810 | (574,364)
RiBam K ERL Impairment loss recognised
A E1E in income statement (28) (325) = —
®12A31H At 31st December 656,640 576,576 656,640 576,576
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ASSETS (Continued)

ZER B N AR A A e A] 4 B AR RE SR

21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

The analysis of the Group’s and the Company’s available-

REESTAOT : for-sale equity securities at their carrying value is as
follows:
K PN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT | BT | BT | BFEFT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS’000
ERERE S Listed equity securities
EBBERGAA Stock Exchange of Shanghai 656,640 565,802 | 656,640 565,802
JEETMARHEEH Unlisted equity securities — 10,774 — 10,774
656,640 576,576 656,640 576,576

M2009F12 H31H © AEEEA 5

The Group held the following available-for-sale equity

HEHEREES - securities as at 31st December 2009:
FEEN
e TEEH BREE
Place of Principal Group's
ATEE Company name incorporation activities effective interest
EZhEBEENRHERAH Huaneng Power International, Inc. HEARLHE RERPHES S 0.6%
(TzEgel) (‘Huaneng") The People’s  Generation and sale (7,2008 1)

Republic of China of electric power (72 million shares)
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HRFEAENREEE L AR
BN E B R 20076F E & HERED
3,600 B EWREM 2B E
B AEBRSBEEHEEMEE
WS NRER » WM R ERMIEE
BHFEBRAZRFTHRFERE
BRI IEERE -

SER DB R R B HRE
B EER2008F 12 A RKIER
20075 12 ART M HER B EIRD
2E25%BET —BLE=E ([Z%
BR]) 28EEH#® T FENEE
RWE IR AR1,0608 7T (&
BAAE1,21487T) » 7R20085 12
ABEGEMBARRARALZAR
bR R BT B A - WERSF
NEHRETZER o

AEBREBRETNHEZ BFHE
ZIWENETHE  ERIAEH
RERERESGARNRRAZ
REBETREEHBEERNY S
REEHRRNRETHEERTE
77 o B R 2008F EfE @R A
EHENERBEEETHEAAR
i ZBERHEBAETHEZ
HHEEEERENTEASREE
B - REBRBEERNIEE
HBERATERE © 72008F 124
318 - KA HRERERNREATE
B AEERGEERRANERE
BEEBBEZET -

B {s %@ % R 2 A Min Xin Holdings Limited

21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

The tax bureau in Fuzhou, Mainland China had issued
certificates of tax exemption for the gain from
disposal of 36 million shares of Huaneng by the
Group in 2007, hence the Group has not provided
any tax provision against the fair value gain/loss
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity in the investment revaluation
reserve.

In December 2008, the Directors resolved to
terminate the agreement for transfer the entire 25%
equity interest in Fujian Hua Yuan to an independent
third party (the “Buyer”) entered into in December
2007 as the deadline for approval and registration
of the transfer of equity interest had been lapsed. As
at 31st December 2008, the deposit received from
the Buyer of RMB10.69 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$12.14 million) in prior years was
credited to other creditors and accruals in the
consolidated statement of financial position and had
been fully refunded to the Buyer during the year.

The Group assessed the investment for
reclassification at the date of the subsequent
decision not to sell and determined that the Group
could not exercise significant influence over the
financial and operating policy decision of Fujian Hua
Yuan considering the number of the Group’s
representative in the Board of Directors of Fujian Hua
Yuan. Hence Fujian Hua Yuan was reclassified from
non-current asset classified as held-for-sale to this
category in 2008 and the carrying amount on that
date was re-measured as the cost of the financial
asset. The investment in Fujian Hua Yuan was
subsequently measured at fair value and the Group
recognised an impairment loss of HK$0.33 million in
the consolidated income statement after evaluating
the fair value of the investment in Fujian Hua Yuan
as at 31st December 2008.

1 ()
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EA2009$4H MEXBEE R (BER
ARIFEEERE BEREDLE
EEAR) AHEETK - FHE
BEERREEKREREERERE
FREN(MERIRERE]) KAERA
RIEERR M EEERREIERA
7l c R AEE N EEREREIE
BIREREERES - AEEE
TEREET BB R A B 1S RS B BUR
HIREITHFEARTE SN - Eitt - &
SER2009F4A B EREEER
WIEEEH D ERME NT -

Hﬂa@%ﬁﬂ’]&ﬁé%ﬁ’\*ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂé

RAZA - AEEEFEREER
B R FHEERKARIZE - B
MMEERBLRHRRBRE - R
BHEER  AEBERHEABER
NBRERREBEBEISET -

Mz A HEREH T E SR E QR
HIRE R ©

21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

In April 2009, the merger of the four stated-owned
enterprises, including the Company’s former
substantial shareholder, Fujian Investment &
Enterprise Holdings Corporation, was completed.The
new stated-owned enterprise, Fujian Investment and
Development Holdings Corporation (“FIDHC"),
became the Company’s substantial shareholder and
ultimate holding company of Fujian Hua Yuan. As the
Group and Fujian Hua Yuan are under common
control of FIDHC, it is determined that the Group can
exercise significant influence over the financial and
operating policy decision of Fujian Hua Yuan,and the
investment in Fujian Hua Yuan was reclassified to
associates in April 2009.

Before reclassification of the investment in Fujian
Hua Yuan to investments in associates, the Group had
made an assessment of the fair value of Fujian Hua
Yuan by reference to an evaluation of the extent to
which the fair value is less than its cost, the financial
health and results of operation of and near-term
business outlook for Fujian Hua Yuan. According to
the result of assessment, the Group recognised a
further impairment loss of HK$0.03 million in the
consolidated income statement and the fair value
was re-measured as the cost of the investments in
associates.
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22 LR 22 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE
AEE
Group
2009 2008
BEFT BT T
HKS’000 HKS'000
BEERBEERESE Within normal operating cycle included in
EEEANYE current assets
BENARERE Construction costs and capitalised
F sz expenditures 99,012 —
b5 AR A B Amortisation of land use rights
BRI FE17) capitalised (Note 17) 4,428 —
BERARNEARE (FEE9) Borrowing costs capitalised (Note 9) 4,331 —
107,771 —
EHHLEEERPDELHCRPEA All properties under development for sale are located in
#h o Mainland China.
23 BEERURF A 23 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS
AEE
Group
2009 2008
BEFT BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
R1A1H At 1st January 15,781 12,944
0 Additions 32,091 24,784
FFABEROBEIHRE Amortisation charged to income
(FE#E7(b) statement (Note 7(b)) (29,526) (21,947)
M12A31H8 At 31st December 18,346 15,781
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24 i B ME Wk 24 INSURANCE RECEIVABLE
rEE
Group
2009 2008
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
KRB - BLERFNTA Due from agents, brokers and
R intermediates 16,479 18,201
B BEEE Less: Impairment losses (2,541) (2,541)
13,938 15,660
BHIFBE AR Due from contract holders 85 133
BiRER ARR Due from reinsurers 713 591
B BEE R Less: Impairment losses (529) (526)
184 ____________95_
14,207 15,858
R B FE MR R B840 2 15 B BABR — AR 3 90 The credit period for the majority of insurance receivable
RKE10KRTE - REREBR ZEEK normally ranges from 90 to 120 days. The credit terms of
REEREEERE=—FHAER A insurance receivable, including whether guarantees from
BREBABRE ° third parties are required, are determined by senior
management.
72009F 12 A318 - (R FEUGR A BRER At 31st December 2009, the ageing analysis of insurance
AT REZEEH) T - receivable by invoice date was as follows:
rEH
Group
2009 2008
BET T B TFT
HK$’000 HKS’000
30HA Within 30 days 3,355 3,466
31260H 31-60 days 3,666 4,527
61290H 61-90 days 3,311 3,880
iBiE 90H Over 90 days 3,875 3,985
14,207 15,858
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25 HERBEE 25 REINSURANCE ASSETS

AEE
Group
2009 2008
BEFT BT
HKS$’000 HKS'000
BREAEGRREE Reinsurers’ share of insurance
(71 #28) liabilities (Note 28) 4,536 4,892

LSRR A ARBREK GEE
24) ABREARNAEERLDFRALE
SATH B EREM IR

WAFEERBRIIRGEH 26

Balance above exclude the amounts due from reinsurers
in respect of claims already paid by the Group on the

contracts that are reinsured, which are included in

insurance receivable (Note 24).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

R THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
rEE P N/NE|
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BETT| BEEFor | B Tr| BT
HK$’000 HKS’000 HKS$’000 HKS’000
HIEEEMMEES ©  Equity securities held for
REE LT trading, listed in Hong Kong
—®BmE — at market value 2,605 1,725 113 222
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Bl R BRITHAF

RE RRITEFERERAEERAQF]
DRBEFERPBERME TIRITZFRY
AR¥22,3678 T (FEL) B %25,4988
7o) R AR¥11,8658 T (ZEL B
13,526& 7t) (2008F 128318 : 9 HI%
AR#3,7878 TR AR¥1,2728 7T -
ZENBEKA43008 T R ABKE1,4458

JC) °©

BEEERBREEERE AT SHE
EN—ZRXWBRARRZEETBEETLR
75 #51,6008 7T (2008F 12 A31H @ B
1,60087T) 2 BB BIRITER o ZM
B AR MR LRPIE 4 BT (FED
B MEA09B TT) ZIRITIF AR &R
CRBEBE HIAR) 2 %5 T 48 5€ (2008
F12A318 : LRI 2728 - &
B M 2648 TT) ©

BIEAR R B R 2007F R T IRITE R 7
& GERE3) 2 BE - AR EIMIRITATT
HEHB73B LB ER T ERRIT - A
BTN B8 3B 5 A F (20085 12 A 31
B : 45%8668T) °

27

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Included in cash and bank balances are deposits of
approximately RMB223.67 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$254.98 million) and RMB118.65 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$135.26 million)
respectively placed with certain banks in Mainland China
by the Group and the Company (31st December 2008:
approximately RMB37.87 million and RMB12.72 million,
equivalent to approximately HK$43 million and HK$14.45
million respectively).

Pursuant to the requirements from the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong, a subsidiary
maintains at all times a portion of its funds, being not less
than HK$16 million (31st December 2008: HKS 16 million),
in bank deposits. That subsidiary has also maintained a
bank deposit of approximately MOP4.21 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$4.09 million) for fulfilling
certain requirements under the Macao Insurance
Ordinance (31st December 2008: approximately MOP2.72
million, equivalent to approximately HK$2.64 million).

Pursuant to the requirements of the bank loan agreement
(Note 31) entered into by the Company in 2007, the
Company’s bank balances of approximately HK$8.73
million were charged to the lending bank for the
fulfillment of the Company’s repayment obligations (31st
December 2008: approximately HK$8.66 million).
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28 MG KRGS E 28 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND

REINSURANCE ASSETS
AEE
Group
2009 2008
BYTF T BT T
HKS’000 HKS'000
EH# Gross
EERRERBRAR Claims reported and loss adjustment
=33 expenses 21,518 22,859
BEEABERIRERE Claims incurred but not reported 12,908 11,267
34,426 34,126
RmERE Unearned premiums 38,436 35,633
N v B R B 4 4 Unexpired risks provision 1,404 925
RIGETLEE B8 Total insurance liabilities, gross 74,266 70,684
FEU BB 1R B A R IE Recoverable from reinsurers
EERRERBLAARE Claims reported and loss adjustment
&M expenses (838) (368)
BEABERERRE Claims incurred but not reported (3,043) (3,229)
(3,881) (3,597)
RmERE Unearned premiums (655) (1,295)
BRIEANEGRESE Total reinsurers’ share of insurance
4BEE (F17E25) liabilities (Note 25) (4,536) (4,892)
FHE Net
EEWmRERIBAAR Claims reported and loss adjustment
=g expenses 20,680 22,491
EREERERRE Claims incurred but not reported 9,865 8,038
30,545 30,529
RmERE Unearned premiums 37,781 34,338
N v HA [ e B Unexpired risks provision 1,404 925
RIGEEEE FHE Total insurance liabilities, net 69,730 65,792
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28 MEEAAFHREEE () 28 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND

REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

E2RREEH BRABRBARDE
EEREHRRESETNEEDNRE
HA AT 1B R S (A B U [B] ) SR 38 o

The liabilities for gross claims reported, loss adjustment
expenses and claims incurred but not reported are net of
expected recoveries from salvage and subrogation.

REETFESE—SERHER T+ @A
1B 45 NRIEA I 990E T (20084 : 75
#1,5908 JT) °

Included in the net insurance liabilities balance is an
amount of HK$9.9 million (2008: HK$15.9 million) which is
expected to be settled after twelve months.

(a) BB RBERFAEREHEH (a) Movement in claims and loss adjustment expenses
2009 2008

£8 BRRIR ] I8 BIRR ek

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net

BETT EETT BETT | A¥Tr  B¥Fr  BETrR

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

BEZHEE Notified claims 22,859 (368) 22,491 31,452 (1,673) 29,779
BEARRER Incurred but not reported 11,267 (3,229) 8,038 13,577 (5,234) 8,343
R1A18 At 1st January 34,126 (3,597) 30,529 45,029 (6,907) 38,122

ERARLERMEE Cash paid for claims settled during the year (26,358) 609 (25,749) (26,513) 1337 (25,176)

EEEM/ (RY) Increase/(decrease) in liabilities

EEEARE arising from current year claims 21,827 (502) 21,325 15,384 (280) 15,104
AEEERRE arising from prior year claims 3,189 (576) 2,613 2,536 248 2,784

BEERKER arising from incurred but not reported 1,641 186 1,827 (2,310) 2,005 (305)
R12H318 At 31st December 34,425 (3,880) 30,545 34,126 (3,597) 30,529
BEZHEE Notified claims 21,518 (838) 20,680 22,859 (368) 22,491
BEARRER Incurred but not reported 12,908 (3,043) 9,865 11,267 (3,229) 8,038
R12A318 At 31st December 34,426 (3,881) 30,545 34,126 (3,597) 30,529
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28 PREEA £ KR

b & ()

28 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) A T 5 PR B e Al 4 5 ) (b) Movement in provision for unearned premiums
2009 2008

£H BRI ] £ BRR 8
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
BEFT ANFn RETm | A¥Tr BEFr AETr
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MA1E At 1st January 35,633 (1,295) 34,338 28,088 (466) 27,622
EREN Increase during the year 38,436 (655) 37,781 35,633 (1,295) 34,338
ENgRk Release during the year (35,633) 1,295 (34,338) | (28,088) 466 (27,622)
R12A318 At 31st December 38,436 (655) 37,781 35,633 (1,295) 34,338

AnHREEEE RASEAAEEL

F4EH R AREHIR G

HRREHEE -

(c) ARy U o e A < 5 )

Provisions for unearned premiums represent the liability
for short-term insurance contracts for which the Group’s
obligations are not expired at year-end.

(c) Movement in provision for unexpired risks

2009 2008
E1 BRI B8 8 BRR et
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
BETT ERTT ER%Tn | AETr  EETn BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R1A1E At 1st January 925 = 925 936 — 936
FEREM/ () Increase/(release) during the year 479 = 479 (11) = (11)
#12A318 At 31st December 1,404 — 1,404 925 — 925

Aok AL YE A 2 B SR B TR A S AP RS
EREHAARERRRREEBSNRR

BHAM -

The unexpired risk provision relates to the insurance
contracts for which the Group expects to pay claims in
excess of the related unearned premium provision.
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29 R B FE £ 3k 29 INSURANCE PAYABLE

7200912 A318 - (R FE A ERER
ST (RBZHE) M

At 31st December 2009, the ageing analysis of the
insurance payable by invoice date was as follows:

rEE

Group
2009 2008
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
3084 Within 30 days 3,533 3,719
31260H 31-60 days 1,404 2,059
61290H 61-90 days 1,019 1,654
B iE 90H Over 90 days 1,606 2,340
7,562 9,772

30 s 30 DEPOSITS RECEIVED

72009F3 812 H » NATW—RE#
B NR  BELEEFRILIRANK
ERERAT([FRILRBDNEER
H(IERLEEBH]) FT—Hins -
AN R 12,2008 7T (FEX) B 113,854
BT HREKEERILIRE 2 2E070%M%
BEETHRLEERFE -

72009F 12318 + AARE R EBHIK
BERLEEBHINNEE AR
10,9808 7T (FEKABK1251787T) °
RABRFAENRE AR E  WEAREH
TREFAARQREE T8 -

RERAR  ARFCE2BEREEHR
T T8 -

On 12th March 2009, Vigorous, an indirect associate of the
Company, had entered into an agreement with the joint
venture partners (“Maanshan JV Partner”) of Maanshan
Huan Tong Highway Development Limited (“Maanshan
Huan Tong”) to sell the entire 70% equity interest in the
Maanshan Huan Tong held by Vigorous to the Maanshan
JV Partner for a consideration of RMB122 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$138.54 million).

As at 31st December 2009, the Company received a deposit
of RMB109.8 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$125.17 million) from Maanshan JV Partner on behalf
of Vigorous. This deposit held by the Company is interest-
free and repayable by the Company to Vigorous on the
latter’s demand.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting date, the Company
has fully refunded the deposit to Vigorous.
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31 BANK BORROWINGS

ARE ¥ NN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BEFT| BT | BT | BT
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS’000 HKS'000
IRITER - A Bank loans, secured
LA TT B EAL (i) Denominated in HK Dollars (i) 53,946 143,536 53,946 143,536
AR BBAL (ii) Denominated in RMB (ii) 169,315 — — —
223,261 143,536 53,946 143,536
B BENRBAR  Less: Amounts due within one
N2z —FRE year included under
Hi®) 5RIR current liabilities (109,710) (89,590)|  (53,946) (89,590)
113,551 53,946 — 53,946
(i) URITEFRARRNR2007F EE B (i)  This represents the outstanding balance of the three-year

—RIRITRBMH =FHZ B RE K
MARBEEESR  WEKERBRE B
M) BEXEBHRERAR (TREEHMN) S
WMEREBHRE - AP EK9,0008 7T
ERFAER -

72009F 128318 » HIRITE KU
RNAMIRTTA T 475 %8735 7(2008
F12A318 : LE¥8e6=TT) * BRE
BHHE6,3358 THE T (BIEH
B+ ED) (2008512318 : #78
#5,7678 70) KA A RIHME A 7 (B
EHEGRA R K EEEMN) FIEE
B o

I ERITE M F BIR BB RIT R 4
EMEZEEE - 12009F12A831HH
BEBRERNEE1.9E (2008512A31
B :28E) °

floating rate term loans drew down by the Company from
a bank in Hong Kong in 2007 for financing the property
project of Minxin (Suzhou) Property Development Co., Ltd.
(“Minxin Suzhou”) of which HK$90 million was repaid
during the year.

As at 31st December 2009, the bank loans were secured
by the Company’s bank balances of approximately HK$8.73
million (31st December 2008: approximately HK$8.66
million), certain properties (including the leasehold land
component) with a book value of approximately HK$63.35
million (31st December 2008: approximately HK$57.67
million) and share mortgages of the Company’s
subsidiaries, Min Xin Properties Limited and Minxin
Suzhou.

The bank loans were bearing interest at a spread over Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the effective interest rate
at 31st December 2009 was 1.9% per annum (31st
December 2008: 2.8%).
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31 SATEH (B 31 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

(i) RER - BEHMNEHEABERMNT
M —RIBITIRIMARE 15T E
MEFHFEER  (EAMEERIES
MEEER o IIRTTERIARE &M
5 MR &R N T — 18 £ 30 K £ 3 55
VBT - ZiE LR 2009F 128
31HAEREELA R 28,4988 T (£
{BE#)5#32,4888 1) °

PLERTTE R B P B ARRITA
MHAREEREEFR X INB Z5
& 7A2009F12 A31 B BB F R R
6.4 o

RITERIBEWT -

(ii)  During the year, Minxin Suzhou drew down a two-year
floating rate term loan of RMB150 million from a bank in
Suzhou, Mainland China for financing the construction
costs of its property development project. The bank loan
was secured by the land use rights of a parcel of land in
Suzhou held by Minxin Suzhou with a book value of
approximately RMB284.98 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$324.88 million) as at 31st December
2009.

The bank loan was bearing interest at a spread over
Renminbi lending rate announced by the People’s Bank of
China and the effective interest rate at 31st December 2009

was 6.4% per annum.

The maturity profile of the bank loans is as follows:

rEH AT
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT | BT | BT | BFEFT
HK$’000 HK$'000 | HK$’000 HK$’000
F—FNR Within 1 year 109,710 89,590 53,946 89,590
ZR—FER More than 1 year but
A within 2 years 113,551 53,946 — 53,946
223,261 143,536 53,946 143,536

RERABE  AEBEREE—RRT
NG —EERENEEEES50008 TR
B REEEEE1,0008 7T - ZEREE
BEE—REEMBAREANEANRSE
BYIEEER  ZUENR@FERS
11,2598 7t (R EAEBEIET) © It
IR G AR 3 L 2 () EIR R E R
Mz — - REE 2 REVEY5,0008
THEIRER - BEEE LMFEHEMN
“FHEBMNEERNBRE -

Subsequent to the reporting date, the Group has obtained

a revolving loan facility of HK$50 million and an overdraft

facility of HK$10 million from a bank in Hong Kong.These

facilities were secured by the self-use office building

owned by a wholly-owned subsidiary in Hong Kong with
a net book value of HK$12.59 million (fair value of HK$100
million). The security was previously one of the collateral

of the loans mentioned in (i) above. The revolving loan

facility of HK$50 million has been drawn down by the

Group for the repayment of the balance of the three-year

floating rate term loans mentioned in (i) above.
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A 92 P 45 B

BEEHERAGEEINERERZRES
FiIE 2 B9 16.5% (20084F : 16.5%) N FF
B P 3 ¢ T8 2 B 2R 25% (20084F : 25%)
ER SR - E8 5 TEF & E AR
HEERZHHBAEERE - mEER
SRS RE—BIISHERES - AR iSEEFT
RHEERBEEFMESHABEAEE -

EERBEE,/ (BB BB
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a taxation rate
of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) for Hong Kong taxation and 25%
(2008: 25%) for Mainland China taxation. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority.

The movement on the deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
account is as follows:

xE PN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BYFx| BT | B¥Fx| EETT
HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
M1A1H At 1st January (6,528) 6223)|  (7,201) (6,418)
EEFRERAREX Deferred taxation charged
bk 2 BT to current year’s
I8 income statement (3,384) (305) (3,222) (783)
”»12A31H At 31st December (9,912) (6,528) (10,423) (7,201)

BEFMSHEERERBER B =
FHRRRIERT NS IR MBS 2
TRIBIERER - 12009128318 » &A%
BBt RERMBOEE 21ET
(20084F : 475 1.8618 7T) Al &5 8 A K
SHARRERBUA o It ERBIL LR
/Hﬂ o

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. At
31st December 2009, the Group has estimated
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$210 million
(2008: approximately HK$186 million) to carry forward
against future taxable income. These tax losses have no
expiry date.
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32 REEFRABL () 32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
FRNREMSHEERBEZEE (EF The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities

— R 2 AR AT AT

(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation
jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

4L Fr 19 B0 AL A Deferred income tax liabilities
A4 The Group
IERIEITE R

REMEE
Accelerated tax
depreciation and
investment properties

revaluation
2009 2008
BT T B TFT
HK$’000 HKS’000
R1A1H At 1st January 9,926 8,824
TEFEEREK Charged to current year's
kR income statement 4,159 1,102
M®12H31H At 31st December 14,085 9,926
A H] The Company
MEHIERER
BEMES R
Accelerated tax
depreciation and
investment properties
revaluation
2009 2008
BT T BETFT
HK$’000 HKS’000
R1A1H At 1st January 7,469 6,737
EEFREERZE Charged to current year’s
ks income statement 3,195 732
M12A31H At 31st December 10,664 7,469
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32 BRI HL () 32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
W% P 15 B0 A Deferred income tax assets
A4 The Group
FEst & BiE ok
Accrued expenses Tax losses Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
BETFT | BT | BEFXL | B%Fr | BT | AT
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
W1A18 At 1st January (4) (2) (3,394) (2,599) (3,398) (2,601)
EEEERER Credited to current year's
AR income statement 1 ) (776) (795) (775) (797)
M12A318 At 31st December (3) (4) (4,170) (3,394) (4,173) (3,398)
AT The Company
Hiia
Tax losses
2009 2008
BT B F T
HKS’000 HK$’000
MW1A18 At 1st January (268) (319)
EEFREAREX Charged to current year’s
kR income statement 27 51
M12A31H At 31st December (241) (268)

174
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32 BB ()

EABEREECHMEHEEEN A
B& - THSBEMBARNRAIR

32

shown in the statement of financial position:

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The following amount, determined after appropriate
offsetting of deferred income tax assets and liabilities, is

AEE YN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BEFT| BT | B Fx| F¥Fr
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
RIS EE Deferred income tax assets
#1218 A & To be recovered after
g [l 12 months 607 663 = —
#r12{E A R To be recovered within
U5 =] 12 months 51 10 — —
658 673 — —
RIEMEHEARE Deferred income tax liabilities
#1218 A & To be settled after
SN 12 months (10,570) (7,201)| (10,423) (7,201)
(9,912) (6,528) (10,423) (7,201)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 BEARKGEH S ()
(c) MEA

33 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Share capital

2009 2008
R#E EETFT R7EE BT
No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HKS'000
EERE Authorised
TR Ordinary shares of
BREEIT HK$1 each 800,000,000 800,000 800,000,000 800,000
EiER o S8BT Ordinary shares, issued
R RBAE and fully paid
EmR Ordinary shares of
BREEIT HK$1 each 459,428,656 459,429 | 459,428,656 459,429

BB E AR BBERA R TR
B TEBRREZRLIAERE —ROKR
S o A BRI B AR RRIGRE

ERAREFES o

(d) il fli e PR B S &

(i) Wt i 08 e B A8 o] fif i 2

B REBREAERHKESNER o
RSB B (R FHER) 25 48B 15 M 55 49H 1K

FT#E ©
(ii) BERME

FERMEBETEIERRE

— —HARZHEREBRECRMN
RS EER RN EIERE

il k- ue A N o)

A
& e

AT 19K TE fif 45

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at shareholders’ meetings. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Share premium and capital redemption reserve
The application of the share premium and the capital

redemption reserve is governed by Sections 48B and 49H
respectively of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(ii)

Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve mainly comprises the following:

— Non-distributable reserve set aside by a jointly
controlled financial institution from its retained
earnings in accordance with the Financial System Act
of Macao.
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A B fit i 4 ()

(d) il fl e H B R & ()

(ii) LERMHE ()

o B 12 1) < b M A AR 1R B (B 2D
ﬁﬂﬂ%%ﬁm%%%&ﬁkﬂ
B R (B £120051495% ) 5% 37 HY
— R - ZMREEBEAFES
Mﬁﬁ W BT &R EK T
+ PR UASER 48 18 oK sk 2 B B T RUVE
&8 o

(iii) PG 2
ERRESINRBENBEHLIE—R
R -

(iv) B &

BEXRFHEL R

—  20014F1 B 1B ARIBLER A Rk

BMENRMEENBERAEE
EEREBENRREE  AF
REABBNATHERRKAE
AR - &

— HEZEHEBREWNBARNBEE

EEZ\%%‘ MR FEEEE R
& o

(v) HEFMFHHEE

REBMRFHEBEARR RILRZES]
ERFarAf ﬁ%éﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁr
TEZE)FE CREREEHIELCER X
) o

33 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ii)  Statutory reserve (Continued)

General reserve established and maintained within
equity holders’ equity of a jointly controlled financial
institution pursuant to Caijin [2005] No.49 “Measures
on General Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts for
Financial Institutions” issued by Ministry of Finance.
The general reserve was established through the
appropriation of income to cover unidentified
potential impairment losses.

(iii) General reserve

The general reserve is transferred from retained earnings

and is available for general use.

(iv) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the following:

(v)

goodwill and the excess of the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
business combination and the investments in
associates prior to 1st January 2001; and

capitalisation of reserves for the purpose of
increasing the share capital of jointly controlled

entities and their subsidiaries in previous years.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the

cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-

sale financial assets (less related deferred tax credit/

charge) held by the Company and jointly controlled

entities.
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B R kil 4 ()

(d) fEHEEEE X HE ()

(vi) FHEBREEMGHEE
HEBEEAREESEHEERNE
TERVEETHIBAREMEZBA
EXNATEEEFE-

(vii) SMEITE 2
INENMEFBESBERESINEEAR
a) « BN A K EE B A B S 3R
REARNRIZHREEMELENATAE
ZEHE o

R

(a) L HofE FRE KOt BB Ry
EW RS

B {s %@ % R 2 A Min Xin Holdings Limited

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(vi) Leasehold buildings revaluation reserve

The leasehold buildings revaluation reserve comprises the
net change in the fair value of leasehold buildings at the
date of reclassification from owner-occupied property to
investment property.

(vii) Exchange translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising on translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities into the reporting currency of the
Company.

COMMITMENTS

(a) Commitments for expenditures on land use rights
and properties under development for sale

RE RKAF
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BEFT| BT | BEFrx| B¥Fr
HKS’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
B2 4B R B Contracted but not
provided for 102,498 179,673 — —
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34 R¥E () 34 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) W3k ~ HEAR Te SeAfs 0 AR IS

(b) Capital commitments for expenditures on
property, plant and equipment

rEE b NY/NE|
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BETT| B+ | B¥%Frx| EETT
HKS’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
BB RER Contracted but not
provided for 189 188 189 188
Rt AL EAREYPE  The Group’s share of
NS B L capital commitments of
HEAZEGHE the jointly controlled
LB REYE entities not included
R above is as follows:
BEEABRERE Contracted but not
provided for 22,002 13
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35 FHLRE 35 LEASE COMMITMENTS

(a) ZA&MA (a) As lessee
2009128318 - AEERARQ AR
BAREz e EmAR KRR
ZEREBAENMRNOT :

At 31st December 2009, the Group and the Company had
future aggregate minimum lease payments payable under
non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

K& b NN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BYFT| ¥ T | B¥Fx| BT+
HKS’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
EiE Land and buildings
F—FNA Within one year 607 623 1,973 2,150
F_FEFRFNA In the second to fifth
(BREEEMFE) year inclusive 48 105 — 1,973
655 728 1,973 4,123
(b) HWHA (b) As lessor

7200912318 © AEBE N ARQFIR
BT Bl 2 £ 2 F0 & 1 7R 7R 2R JE UL ER
JEREBEEMTAT :

At 31st December 2009, the Group and the Company had
future aggregate minimum lease payments receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

rEE ARAFE
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BETT| BEToT | BT | EEFT
HKs’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS'000
i E Land and buildings
F—FNA Within one year 6,644 5,810 3,543 3,476
F_FEFRFA In the second to fifth
(BREEREMF) year inclusive 12,470 9,715 7,052 9,715
FRFRAE In the sixth year and thereafter — 333 — 333
19,114 15,858 10,595 13,524

AEBHBECBAEMEEMECHESF
HhH—FERFAF  HEHRZES
DEEEZ -

The lease terms for commercial and residential properties
leased out by the Group range from one to six years and
with fixed rentals throughout the lease periods.
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36 HFEEBERER TR 36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B 58 i ¥ ) B4 % 3 B B 4 O oh TR

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash

HEHR outflow from operations
2009 2008
BT BT T
HKS’000 HKS$’000
B A5 AT g ) Profit before taxation 176,834 164,487
PR Adjustments for:
IR RIIEHIEREELE Share of results of jointly controlled entities (185,873) (170,605)
iy NI Share of results of associates (5,657) (6,153)
KEMFEEHRFEKR Fair value gains on revaluation of
investment properties (11,253) (3,201)
EAFEERERYE Fair value (gains)/losses on listed equity
K iR ER S AT E securities measured at fair value
(Wz) &8 through profit or loss (768) 2,070
AR ESREEMERE  Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets 28 325
e R Depreciation and amortisation 1,878 6,356
HERENMERE Gain on disposal of investment properties — (1,725)
HEYE « R NRMEETE  Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 76 23
SR1T17 3H) B A Interest income from bank deposits (1,533) (5,837)
B Interest expenses 2,477 7,460
b 5 U & F 58 Net exchange gains (28) (2,386)
MEEREEFBN Changes in working capital:
HEEERPYELM Increase in properties under
development for sale (99,012) —
I FE BRAS AR 2N 18 0 Increase in deferred acquisition costs (2,565) (2,837)
R U SRR A, (35 50) Decrease/(increase) in insurance
receivable 1,651 (5,565)
BREEERD Decrease in reinsurance assets 356 2,481
H b & U BR FOR Decrease in other debtors 181 48
TEft R Rz & R, (I0)  Decrease/(increase) in prepayments
and deposits 8,095 (9,994)
RS £93% 0 GR) Increase/(decrease) in insurance contracts 3,582 (3,369)
R FES R OBl A) 180 (Decrease)/increase in insurance payable (2,213) 4,459
HAi e R L BT E A Increase/(decrease) in other creditors
#hn, Gk ) and accruals 27,050 (679)
B iz m Decrease in deposits received = (79,426)
PE W =58 Exchange difference (49) (232)
K EB)IA R R Net cash outflow from operations (86,743) (104,300)
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B YN

R AGEMBEHRE  WASEAR
NBEELERERZALTIEET B R
RERARELBEBEBEAZE  HRZT
R IR E R A TR K EE S
IHFREATE  TRREAREEH
o FEALTAURMBEA BIE2EE
AB - TERRHKE R HEARK
ERE) A EMER  UWRBEEIXAEE
BRBATERTZENER  LEAH
BATREMAL -

BRIOANER B B 5 ek A BB 0 RS
AEBAELEEEBBENETZERE
BEALTRZBENT :

(@) H2009F12A31H  ZEBRAR
AT L FIE H & RS 2 173K
D RIAETEM17,2768 7T (2008
F 94618 L) kB 16,152
5 7T(20084F : k8,386 8 7T) © It
EHFRMF B — R EF K5t
H AEERAARANFEHIAT
EENFERARBBES0E T
(2008%F : #2288 L) RB 34

e — 4 —

& (20084 : B¥E19587T) °

(b) FAREEN—ZRKBRAL K
EEEF EEE N EHMEREBNE
REWRABRESFHEA B
52287020084 : ABKE487ETT) ©
M ERAEER R REERES
WERHEME=ERF 2 BRAKER]
ZERER -

B {s %@ % R 2 A Min Xin Holdings Limited

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the party or exercise significant influence over the
party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice
versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to
common control or common significant influence. Related
parties may be individuals (being members of key
management personnel, significant shareholders and/or
their close family members) or other entities and include
entities which are under the significant influence of related
parties of the Group where those parties are individuals.

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, significant related party
transactions which were carried out in the normal course
of the Group'’s business are as follows:

(@ As of 31st December 2009, the Group and the
Company had deposits with jointly controlled
financial institutions totaling HK$172.76 million
(2008: HK$94.61 million) and HK$161.52 million
(2008: HK$83.86 million) respectively. The deposits
carry interest at normal commercial rates and have
generated interest income of HK$0.5 million (2008:
HK$2.28 million) and HK$0.34 million (2008: HK$1.95
million) to the Group and the Company for the year.

(b) Gross insurance premium less commission paid
totaling HK$5.22 million (2008: HK$4.87 million) was
derived from business referred to a subsidiary by a
jointly controlled entity during the year. Those
insurance policies underwritten by the Group were
contracted at prices and terms not less favourable
than those contracted with other third party
customers of the Group.
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37 HREANLRZS () 37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(@ ARAAXTERREEFEERDA (c)  An amount of HK$1.88 million (2008: HK$1.88
(BEE)ZNERE BB 1888 T million) was paid to Vigour Fine Company Limited

(2008%F : B¥1888 L) - fERHE (“Vigour Fine”), a substantial shareholder of the
BE—HERREREL —LEER Company, for the provision of certain management

% BEREESTARAESER services which include the provision of directors to

ZER - the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to a

management agreement.

(d FEEBEEAE (d) Key management personnel
BARITEA B & Z2009%F K 20085 The senior executives’emolument for the year ended
12A318IEFEEZBEL0T - 31st December 2009 and 2008 are detailed as
follows:

2009 2008
B¥ T T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
[ Fees 1,199 1,200

FE - BERHAME Salaries, housing and other allowances,
gk~ REYH and benefits in kind 6,504 7,025
BRIREFIFEIH R Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 72 72
Re Bonus 2,740 3,460
10,515 11,757
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38 iR S IE

BRI A B R P o WS -
EZNHREHNRERABERENT

RBEHRE - KRR —HK AR
HE e - BFIBRRRT  B2&
PRERITREEEEZE® ([RE
SDHE - BPINEBRITHAH
MERRT  FSAAREEAT
BBBMNAERRDE -

ERIREE SR T EaltihE - TBEIAR
~ Al B AT EFT BN R1THY36.75%
BRESRIFTETEB20% © AR
AFREARLRE ([FE]) BREA
BIERKBRT - RAFRIFER
BIFRERITIRER R - A RIBE
Al RETE - BRAREEFERIR
17 ZRITHMBRR - RESRHE
bR BB ISR S - A RIfE

=
B o

2R R NIE ARG 2 HL R E P B
RITRORRHE - EPIBIRRITH B
BRARBNLREZEHER - [
EFBRRTHELEES (EME
FRERIT AR 2K A9 AR RIER S BA
KRB ER T B AT ARSE
BREREME®RRE - MRBRER
EFIBIFR IR TH R M AR E 1
ERAIHEESREE - WREER
HEHAEENGREFEBREKR
THIFE  FAREFBRRITRE
FERAEBERBNNEZZRIR -

B {s %@ % R 2 A Min Xin Holdings Limited

38 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the

consolidated financial statements, a summary of

significant events after the reporting period are disclosed

as follows:

(1

The change of Xiamen International Bank (“XIB”), a
jointly controlled financial institution, from a sino-
foreign joint venture bank to a city commercial bank
and from a limited liability company to a joint-stock
limited company has been approved by the China
Banking Regulatory Commission (“CBRC") after the
reporting period.

In view of the approvals granted by CBRC, it is
expected that the shareholding of the Company in
XIB will be reduced from the current level of 36.75%
to not exceeding 20% in order to comply with
applicable laws and regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”). The timing, manner and
extent of reduction of the Company’s shareholding
in XIB have not been determined and will be subject
to liaison with XIB, its other shareholders, CBRC and
other relevant PRC governmental authorities.

It is also expected that with the reduction of the
Company’s shareholding interest, XIB will cease to be
a jointly controlled entity of the Company and the
operating results (other than the dividend declared
by XIB from time to time) and net assets of XIB will
cease to be accounted for under the equity method
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group
and instead the reduced shareholding interest in XIB
will be re-measured as an available-for-sale financial
asset, which may have a material adverse impact on
the consolidated results of the Group when it occurs
as in recent years XIB has been a material source of
profits to the Group.
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38 i IR S (B) 38 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)
2 FHEBHLESRLRBZEE (2) The transaction to sell the entire 70% equity interest
70%% # K932 5 2. 722010552 A 26 in the Maanshan Huan Tong by Vigorous was
H5ER » AEBEA#G L E R completed on 26th February 2010, resulting in a net
SFEAE 1,008 T 0 WREZE gain on disposal shared by the Group of
2010F12 A31 B IEFE 2 476 approximately HK$11 million which will be
Wz AR © recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ending 31st
December 2010.
39 Y 39 COMPARATIVE FIGURES
BARERME BRI E 158 (KIE8E]) As a result of the adoption of HKAS1 (Revised) Presentation
(K2 25 REBHBHHREER of Financial Statements and HKFRS 8 Operating Segments,
ER [ ENE] - MO LLREFEMEL certain comparative figures have been adjusted to
R LAREARFEZIN AN XA conform to the current year’s presentation and to provide
FA2009F B X EE 2 TH B IRt LB comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed for the
F oo first time in 2009.
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B {s %@ % R 2 A Min Xin Holdings Limited

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD
FOR INVESTMENT

iR iR BEE

& % 5 Group's Approximate ~ REAZ

Lease attributable gross floor Existing

L E Location expiry interest area use
(%) (F7 Rsq. ft.)

(1) JUBRANT M E R 8 847-8655% Shops 7 &8 on ground floor including 2049 100 14,841 [EES
KB RE T AL 75 K 8% store 8 on the cockloft therein and Commercial
ESRE o RHE  1BRMERE the whole of 1st and 2nd floors

Winfield Building
847-865 Canton Road, Yaumatei
Hong Kong

2 BAREREREE IR Apartment A, 34/F of Tower | 2060 100 1,276 =

MEEE —E3MEAE Park Towers Residential
1 King's Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

B3) PEARANBERABME 22/F and 23/F, Worldwide Plaza 2044 100 41,288 ES

A58 RIKES 222 12318 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Commercial
The People’s Republic of China

4) REAREMBERREEMD Carpark Nos. #24 to #28 and #42 to #48 2044 100 5,227 [ES
RME158FIRIRE S T =8 Basement Level 3, Worldwide Plaza Commercial
BALRIG#4Z #28 [ #42Z #48 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian

The People’s Republic of China

5) FEAREMBERREEMT Unit C2, 17/F, Hua Fu Building 2063 100 1,225 FE

HABI2IRERAE 121 Gutian Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Residential

17 QETT

The People’s Republic of China
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17th Floor, Fairmont House, 8 Cotton Tree Drive
Central, Hong Kong

EBAPEBARKSEREREI17E
Tel EFE : 2521-5671
Fax 2 E : 2530-5488

Website 48 3E : www.minxin.com.hk



